
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 



2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Interest income $24,683 $22,259 $19,615 $19,792 $22,201
Interest expense 12,198 8,913 5,925 6,452 7,971

Net interest income $12,485 $13,346 $13,690 $13,340 $14,230
Less:  Provision for credit losses 1,257 786 327 434 944

Net interest income after provision
            for credit losses $11,228 $12,560 $13,363 $12,906 $13,286
Plus:   Noninterest income $1,619 $1,567 $1,734 $2,027 $1,707
Less:  Noninterest expense 10,823 10,961 10,049 9,066 8,452

Net noninterest expense ($9,204) ($9,394) ($8,315) ($7,039) ($6,745)
Income before income taxes $2,024 $3,166 $5,048 $5,867 $6,541
Income tax expense 9 580 1,190 1,525 1,817

Net income $2,015 $2,586 $3,858 $4,342 $4,724

PER SHARE DATA (1)
Net income $16.87 $21.48 $31.86 $39.40 $43.49
Cash dividends declared 14.30 14.10 13.25 12.25 11.38
Book value (year end) 420.33 421.14 416.94 400.29 334.32

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Average balances:

Total loans (includes loans held for sale) $314,411 $312,532 $282,000 $258,276 $266,004
Investment securities 48,896 49,049 48,470 51,661 42,580
Assets 401,720 395,535 366,550 350,301 339,604
Deposits 288,976 284,568 265,916 259,625 249,722
Stockholders' equity 50,183 50,556 49,676 40,203 34,929

Year-end balances:
Total loans (includes loans held for sale) $306,935 $326,512 $300,864 $266,503 $262,470
Allowance for possible credit losses 5,732 6,400 5,820 5,529 5,418
Investment securities 51,085 49,570 49,005 49,909 50,168
Assets 402,843 414,521 396,685 358,878 346,153
Deposits 293,662 298,254 288,758 263,731 257,964
Long-term debt 27,802 35,015 33,773 26,480 26,186
Stockholders' equity 50,042 50,553 50,383 48,569 36,150

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Return on average equity 4.02% 5.12% 7.77% 10.80% 13.52%
Return on average assets 0.50% 0.65% 1.05% 1.24% 1.39%
Net interest spread (tax-equivalent) 2.98% 3.42% 3.93% 3.95% 4.28%
Average equity to average assets 12.49% 12.78% 13.55% 11.48% 10.29%
Allowance for credit losses to loans 1.87% 1.96% 1.93% 2.07% 2.06%
Non-performing loans to allowance for 
       credit losses 139.57% 118.56% 101.37% 113.61% 112.41%

Dollars in thousands except per share data.

(1)    Adjusted to reflect 2-for-1 stock split effective June 11, 2002.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31,
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Denmark Bancshares, Inc. (“DBI”), headquartered in Denmark, Wisconsin, is a diversified one-bank holding company.  Denmark State 
Bank (“DSB”), DBI's subsidiary bank, offers six full service banking offices located in the Villages of Denmark, Bellevue, Maribel, 
Reedsville, Whitelaw and Wrightstown, serving primarily Brown, Kewaunee, Manitowoc and Outagamie Counties.   DBI also extends 
farm credit through its subsidiary Denmark Agricultural Credit Corporation (“DACC”).   

 

 

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
The management of Denmark Bancshares, Inc.  (“DBI”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal 
control over financial reporting.  DBI’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   
 
All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations.  Therefore, even those systems 
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and 
presentation. 
 
DBI’s management conducted an assessment, including testing, of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2006.  In making this assessment, DBI used the criteria set forth by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control – Integrated Framework.  Based on 
this assessment, DBI’s management believes that, as of December 31, 2006, DBI’s internal control over financial reporting 
is effective based on those criteria. 
 
The independent registered public accounting firm, Wipfli LLP, has issued an audit report on our assessment of DBI’s 
internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.  
  
 

John P. Olsen       Dennis J. Heim 
President       Vice President  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 
 
 
 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Denmark Bancshares, Inc. 
Denmark, Wisconsin 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Denmark Bancshares, 
Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of income, 
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
2006.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 
2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States. 
 
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control – 
Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 7, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on 
management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.   

 

 
 

Wipfli LLP 

 
 
March 7, 2007 
Green Bay, Wisconsin 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 

Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Denmark Bancshares, Inc. 
Denmark, Wisconsin 
 
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management, that Denmark 
Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over  financial reporting as 
of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit.  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audit included 
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  A company’s internal control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
In our opinion, management’s assessment that Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  Also in our opinion, Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 
31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control— Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 
 
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and 
cash flows of Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries, and our report dated 
March 7, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion. 
 

 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
March 7, 2007 
Green Bay, Wisconsin 
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ASSETS
Assets 2006 2005

Cash and due from banks $9,258,418 $10,495,063
Federal funds sold 11,744,000 5,140,000
Investment Securities 

Available-for-sale, at fair value 13,611,476 11,016,664
Held-to-maturity (fair value approximates $39,169,568
 and $40,408,989, respectively) 37,473,611 38,553,270

Total Investment Securities $51,085,087 $49,569,934
Loans less allowance for credit losses of $5,731,674

and $6,400,480, respectively 300,299,635 318,670,892
Loans held for sale 903,793 1,440,529
Premises and equipment, net 9,283,780 10,180,630
Other investments, at cost 4,944,649 7,743,390
Accrued interest receivable 2,218,003 2,032,413
Other assets 13,105,832 9,247,763

TOTAL ASSETS $402,843,197 $414,520,614

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities

Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $41,338,954 $39,545,404
Interest-bearing 252,322,716 258,708,268

Total Deposits $293,661,670 $298,253,672

Short-term borrowings 28,579,445 28,230,373
Accrued interest payable 1,426,938 1,265,875
Other liabilities 1,330,699 1,202,826
Long-term debt 27,802,069 35,015,216

Total Liabilities $352,800,821 $363,967,962
Stockholders' Equity

Common stock, no par value, authorized 640,000
shares; issued 119,053 and 120,038 shares,
net of 2,477 shares of treasury stock in 2006
and 1,492 shares in 2005 $16,106,590 $16,975,172

Paid in capital 469,986 470,094
Retained earnings 33,500,531 33,191,504
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (34,731) (84,118)

Total Stockholders' Equity $50,042,376 $50,552,652
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $402,843,197 $414,520,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
As of December 31, 
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2006 2005 2004

Interest Income $21,520,935 $19,405,904 $16,921,457
Loans including fees
Investment securities:

Taxable 464,213 286,473 179,675
Tax-exempt 1,992,604 2,052,247 2,025,429

Interest on federal funds sold 289,632 69,500 81,060
Other interest income 415,932 445,336 407,370

$24,683,316 $22,259,460 $19,614,991

Interest Expense
Deposits $9,333,348 $6,659,753 $4,342,960
Short-term borrowings 1,499,933 795,340 368,509
Long-term debt 1,364,610 1,458,106 1,213,335

$12,197,891 $8,913,199 $5,924,804
Net interest income $12,485,425 $13,346,261 $13,690,187

Provision for Credit Losses 1,257,000 786,000 327,000
Net interest income after

provision for credit losses $11,228,425 $12,560,261 $13,363,187

Other Income
Service fees and commissions $1,036,583 $940,420 $945,362
Investment security losses (59,486) 0 0
Loan sale gains 84,769 134,309 257,189
Bank owned life insurance 213,000 211,000 222,000
Other 344,233 281,718 309,710

$1,619,099 $1,567,447 $1,734,261

Other Expense
Salaries and employee benefits $6,396,726 $6,615,689 $6,151,745
Occupancy expenses 1,510,244 1,365,939 1,203,438
Data processing expenses 1,024,490 731,992 644,461
Marketing expenses 148,163 256,717 262,427
Directors fees 156,415 234,800 228,110
Professional fees 359,738 223,698 241,108
Printing and supplies 180,328 212,703 221,002
Amortization of intangibles 209,292 212,881 214,230
Other operating expenses 837,782 1,107,474 882,904

$10,823,178 $10,961,893 $10,049,425
Income before income taxes $2,024,346 $3,165,815 $5,048,023
Income tax expense 9,394 579,941 1,190,103

NET INCOME $2,014,952 $2,585,874 $3,857,920

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE $16.87 $21.48 $31.86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 
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Common Stock Accumulated
Other

Paid in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (loss) Total

Balance, December 31, 2003 121,335 $18,106,238 $470,138 $30,046,866 ($54,441) $48,568,801
Comprehensive income
Net income 3,857,920 3,857,920
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Change in unrealized loss on  
securities available-for-sale (11,890) (11,890)

Total comprehensive income $3,846,030
Cash dividend, $13.25 per share (1,604,204) (1,604,204)
Treasury stock sales 106 90,038 (44) 89,994
Treasury stock acquisitions (602) (517,389) (517,389)
Balance, December 31, 2004 120,839 $17,678,887 $470,094 $32,300,582 ($66,331) $50,383,232
Comprehensive income
Net income 2,585,874 2,585,874
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Change in unrealized loss on  
securities available-for-sale (17,787) (17,787)

Total comprehensive income $2,568,087
Cash dividend, $14.10 per share (1,694,952) (1,694,952)
Treasury stock sales 87 76,299 76,299
Treasury stock acquisitions (888) (780,014) (780,014)
Balance, December 31, 2005 120,038 $16,975,172 $470,094 $33,191,504 ($84,118) $50,552,652
Comprehensive income
Net income 2,014,952 2,014,952
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Change in unrealized loss on  
securities available-for-sale, net of 49,387 49,387
reclassification adjustment (1)

Total comprehensive income $2,064,339
Cash dividend, $14.30 per share (1,705,925) (1,705,925)
Treasury stock sales 245 215,218 (108) 215,110
Treasury stock acquisitions (1,230) (1,083,800) (1,083,800)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 119,053 $16,106,590 $469,986 $33,500,531 ($34,731) $50,042,376

(1) Disclosure of reclassification amount:
Unrealized holding gains arising during the period $13,320
Plus: reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income, net of income tax 36,067
Net unrealized gains on securities $49,387

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income $2,014,952 $2,585,874 $3,857,920
Adjustments to reconcile net income to 

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 882,308 747,337 653,625
Provision for credit losses 1,257,000 786,000 327,000
Amortization of intangibles 209,292 212,881 214,230
Gains on sales of loans (84,769) (134,309) (257,189)
Loss on sale of assets 82,699 219,666 87,729
Amortization of bond premium 20,101 20,908 33,138
Accretion of bond discount (179,104) (167,444) (147,645)
Loans originated for sale (7,274,293) (11,848,512) (21,594,022)
Proceeds from sale of loans 7,695,612 11,339,900 21,616,408
Common stock dividends 0 (315,795) (333,800)
Income from bank owned life insurance (213,000) (211,000) (222,000)
Increase in interest receivable (185,590) (318,621) (204,693)
Increase in interest payable 161,063 423,048 206,451
Other, net (312,738) (170,671) (135,807)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $4,073,533 $3,169,262 $4,101,345
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Maturities of held-to-maturity securities $1,875,300 $1,970,000 $2,020,000
Maturities and sales of available-for-sale securities 8,193,706 10,980,274 5,285,735
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (640,000) (375,000) (3,927,837)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (10,762,682) (13,019,965) (2,380,000)
Purchases of AgriBank, FCB common stock (45,000) (45,000) (45,000)
Money market mutual funds, net (203,543) (140,294) 184,504
Federal funds sold, net (6,604,000) 8,979,000 (5,907,000)
Proceeds from sale of FHLB Common Stock 3,047,284 0 0
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 1,538,415 1,177,800 513,360
Proceeds from sale of building 123,351 0 0
Net decrease (increase) in loans made to customers 12,307,867 (25,799,791) (34,772,175)
Capital expenditures (109,114) (2,563,947) (3,048,275)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $8,721,584 ($18,836,923) ($42,076,688)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net (decrease) increase in deposits ($4,592,002) $9,496,057 $25,026,790
Purchase of treasury stock (1,083,800) (780,014) (517,389)
Sale of treasury stock 215,110 76,299 89,994
Dividends paid (1,706,995) (1,658,316) (1,546,935)
Debt proceeds 36,019,072 41,412,048 40,936,816
Debt repayments (42,883,147) (33,657,522) (30,185,946)

Net Cash (Used) Provided by Financing Activities ($14,031,762) $14,888,552 $33,803,330
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ($1,236,645) ($779,109) ($4,172,013)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 10,495,063 11,274,172 15,446,185

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $9,258,418 $10,495,063 $11,274,172
Noncash Investing Activities:

Loans transferred to foreclosed properties $5,006,576 $589,000 $610,609
Total (decrease) increase in unrealized loss on

securities available-for-sale ($81,959) $26,515 $19,609
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Nature of Organization 
Denmark Bancshares, Inc. is a bank holding company as defined in the Bank Holding Company Act.  As such, it 
exercises control over Denmark State Bank, Denmark Ag Credit Corporation and McDonald-Zeamer Insurance Agency, 
Inc.  A majority of DBI's assets are held by Denmark State Bank.   
 
Denmark State Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary of Denmark Bancshares, Inc., operates under a state bank charter, and 
provides full banking services to its customers.  Denmark Investments Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Denmark 
State Bank.  DBI and its subsidiaries make agribusiness, commercial and residential loans to customers throughout the 
state, but primarily in eastern Wisconsin.  DBI and its subsidiaries have a diversified loan portfolio, however, a 
substantial portion of their debtors' ability to honor their contract is dependent upon the agribusiness economic sector.  
The main loan and deposit accounts are fully disclosed in Notes 4 and 7.  The significant risks associated with financial 
institutions include interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and concentration risk. 

Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiaries.  All 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Significant estimates in the financial statements 
include allowance for credit losses and accounting for the impairment of loans, which are discussed specifically in the 
following sections of this footnote.  

Cash Flows 
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and amounts due from banks.  Cash 
flows from demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings accounts, federal funds purchased and sold, cash receipts and 
payments of loans and time deposits are reported net.  For purposes of cash flow reporting, income taxes paid were 
$435,141, $880,947 and $1,051,854 and interest paid was $12,061,075, $8,505,002 and $5,735,119 for the years ended 
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

Investment Securities 
Investment securities are designated as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity when purchased and remain in that 
classification until they are sold or mature.  Debt and equity securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at 
estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of any applicable deferred income taxes, reported as a separate 
component of stockholders' equity.  Debt securities classified as held-to-maturity are stated at cost adjusted for 
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, which are recognized as adjustments to interest income.  Realized 
gains or losses on dispositions are recorded in other operating income on the settlement date, based on the net proceeds 
and the adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold using the specific identification method.  

Loans 
Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of the allowance for credit losses.  Interest on loans is 
calculated and accrued by using the simple interest method on the daily balance of the principal amount outstanding.  
Loan-origination fees are credited to income when received and the related loan-origination costs are expensed as 
incurred.  Capitalization of the fees net of the related costs would not have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements.   
 
Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as nonaccrual loans.  Accrual of interest on 
loans is discontinued either when reasonable doubt exists as to the full, timely collection of interest or principal or when a 
loan becomes contractually past due by ninety days or more with respect to interest or principal.  When a loan is placed 
on nonaccrual, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest income.  Income 
on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received and where the future collection of principal is 
probable.  Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are brought fully current with respect to interest 
and principal and when, in the judgment of the management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to both 
principal and interest. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that not all amounts due will be collected 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  Impaired loans are measured at the estimated fair value of the 
collateral.  If the estimated fair value of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan, an impairment 
is recognized by creating a valuation allowance.  Interest income is recognized in the same manner described above for 
nonaccrual loans. 

Allowance for Credit Losses 
The allowance for credit losses is established through a provision for credit losses charged to expense.  Loans are charged 
against the allowance for credit losses when management believes that the collectibility of the principal is unlikely.  The 
allowance is an amount that management believes to be adequate to absorb losses inherent in existing loans, based on 
evaluations of the collectibility and prior loss experience of loans.  The evaluations take into consideration such factors as 
changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio quality, loan concentrations, specific problem loans, 
leases and commitments, and current and anticipated economic conditions that may affect the borrowers' ability to pay.   

Loans Held For Sale 
Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at lower of cost or estimated fair value in the 
aggregate.  Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. 

Other Real Estate Owned 
Other real estate owned represents real estate of which DBI has taken control in partial or total satisfaction of loans.  
Other real estate owned is carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated costs to sell.  Losses at the time 
property is classified as other real estate owned are charged to the allowance for credit losses.  Subsequent gains and 
losses, as well as operating income or expense related to other real estate owned, are charged to expense.  Other real 
estate owned, which is included in other assets, totaled $3,788,100 and $342,845 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively. 

Other Investments 
Other investments are carried at cost and consist primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock and AgriBank 
stock.  Other investments are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. 
 
As a member of the FHLB, DSB is required to hold stock in the FHLB based on the anticipated amount of FHLB 
borrowings to be advanced.  This stock is recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.  Transfer of the stock is 
substantially restricted.   

Premises and Equipment 
Premises and equipment owned are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation which is computed principally on the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  The estimated useful lives of the assets are forty years 
for buildings, fifteen years for leasehold improvements and three to seven years for furniture and equipment. 

Intangible Assets 
Other intangibles, which include primarily core deposit intangibles, are amortized on a straight-line basis generally over a 
period of up to 15 years.  Annually management reviews the intangible assets for impairment.  Other intangibles are 
included in Other Assets. 

Income Taxes 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the balance sheet method.  Under this method the net 
deferred income taxes are provided for timing differences between items of income or expense reported in the 
consolidated financial statements and those reported for income tax purposes. 

Treasury Stock 
Treasury stock consists of 2,477 and 1,492 shares, at a cost of $2,067,386 and $1,198,804 as of December 31, 2006 and 
2005, respectively and is netted against common stock on the consolidated statement of financial condition. 
 

Earnings per Common Share 
Earnings per common share are computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding during each year.  DBI does not have any stock based compensation plans, therefore basic and diluted 
earnings per share are presented as one number.  The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is 
119,429, 120,387 and 121,100 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Reclassifications 
Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with 
the presentation in the current year. 
 

New Accounting Pronouncements 
In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 48, Accounting 
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.  This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized 
in a company’s financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, 
Accounting for Income Taxes.  FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial 
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This interpretation 
also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, 
and transition.  FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.  DBI has determined that the 
adoption of FIN 48 in 2007 will not have a material impact on its financial statements. 

 
NOTE 2 – CASH RESTRICTIONS  
DSB is required to maintain non-interest-bearing deposits on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank.  Required reserves 
of $1,077,000 and $1,133,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were satisfied by currency and coin 
holdings. 

 
NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale were as follows:

December 31, 2006
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

U.S. Government agencies $10,364,395 $3,789 ($39,884) $10,328,300
Mortgage-backed securities 469,434 0 (10,155) 459,279
State and local governments 1,821,604 197 (7,904) 1,813,897
Corporate debt securities 1,010,000 0 0 $1,010,000

$13,665,433 $3,986 ($57,943) $13,611,476

December 31, 2005
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

U.S. Government agencies $1,700,000 $0 ($3,850) $1,696,150
Mortgage-backed securities 4,880,182 3,993 (111,969) 4,772,206
State and local governments 4,572,398 296 (24,386) 4,548,308

$11,152,580 $4,289 ($140,205) $11,016,664

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities held-to-maturity were as follows:

December 31, 2006
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

State and local governments $37,473,611 $1,695,957 $0 $39,169,568

December 31, 2005
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

State and local governments $38,553,270 $1,856,408 ($689) $40,408,989
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities at December 31, 2006, by maturity were as follows:

Securities Available-for-Sale Securities Held-to-Maturity
Estimated Estimated

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Amounts Maturing Cost Value Cost Value

Within one year $5,057,717 $5,046,204 $2,122,257 $2,136,550
From one through five years 380,000 379,772 8,444,532 8,863,473
From five through ten years 704,198 703,100 9,868,692 10,306,102
After ten years 7,523,518 7,482,400 17,038,130 17,863,443

$13,665,433 $13,611,476 $37,473,611 $39,169,568

 
Mortgage-backed securities are allocated according to their expected prepayments rather than their contractual maturities. 
Certain state and local governments securities are allocated according to their put date.  Fair values of securities are 
estimated based on financial models or prices paid for similar securities.  It is possible interest rates could change 
considerably resulting in a material change in the estimated fair value. 
 
During 2006 available-for-sale mortgage-backed securities were sold for total proceeds of $2,177,904.  Gross realized 
losses totaled $59,486.  No securities were sold during 2005 and 2004.   Information pertaining to securities with gross 
unrealized losses at the end of the last two years, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual 
securities have been in a continuous loss position follows: 
 

December 31, 2006 Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Estimated Gross Estimated

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Securities Available for Sale Losses Value Losses Value
U.S. Government agencies $39,884 $8,460,372 $0 $0
Mortgage-backed securities 0 0 10,155 459,279
State and local governments 7,904 1,563,700 0 0

Total securities available for sale $47,788 $10,024,072 $10,155 $459,279

December 31, 2005 Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Estimated Gross Estimated

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Securities Available for Sale Losses Value Losses Value
U.S. Government agencies $3,850 $696,150 $0 $0
Mortgage-backed securities 3,953 984,052 108,016 587,050
State and local governments 24,386 3,454,083 0 0

Total securities available for sale $32,189 $5,134,285 $108,016 $587,050

Securities Held to Maturity
State and local governments $689 $374,311 $0 $0

Total securities held to maturity $689 $374,311 $0 $0

 
At December 31, 2006, fifteen debt securities have unrealized losses with aggregate depreciation of 1% from DSB’s 
amortized cost basis.  These unrealized losses relate principally to the increase in interest rates and are not due to changes 
in the financial condition of the issuer.  In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the 
securities are issued by a government body or agency, whether a rating agency has downgraded the securities, and 
industry analysts’ reports.  Since management has the ability to hold debt securities for the foreseeable future, no declines 
are deemed to be other than temporary. 
 
Investments in securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with an amortized cost totaling 
$5,690,973 represents a significant concentration of investments (greater than 10 percent of stockholders’ equity) in any 
individual security issuer.  
 
Investment securities with an amortized cost of $442,078 and $65,161 and estimated fair value of $432,124 and $65,373, 
at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or 
permitted by law.  
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NOTE 4 - LOANS
Major categories of loans included in the loan portfolio are as follows:

December 31, 
2006 2005

Real estate:
Residential $98,318,822 $110,666,301
Commercial 60,496,518 63,211,379
Agricultural 39,857,656 34,979,648
Construction 27,621,381 29,158,731

$226,294,377 $238,016,059

Commercial $35,826,439 $39,766,055
Agricultural 34,782,844 36,260,702
Consumer installment 8,040,355 10,022,202
Unsecured loans 1,087,294 1,006,354

Total loans receivable $306,031,309 $325,071,372
Allowance for credit losses (5,731,674) (6,400,480)

NET LOANS RECEIVABLE $300,299,635 $318,670,892

 
Nonaccrual loans totaled $8,000,306 and $7,587,804 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  There were no loans 
past-due ninety days or more and still accruing.  The reduction in interest income associated with nonaccrual loans is as 
follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 
2006 2005 2004

Income in accordance with
original loan terms $901,145 $584,617 $519,998

Income recognized (592,799) (421,415) (416,746)
REDUCTION IN INTEREST INCOME $308,346 $163,202 $103,252

Information concerning the Company's investment in impaired loans is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 
2006 2005 2004

Total investment in impaired loans $7,360,713 $3,785,842 $2,987,197
Loans requiring a related allowance 7,360,713 3,785,842 2,987,197
Related allowance (367,358) (684,110) (576,713)
Average investment in impaired loans during the year 9,633,245 4,578,580 3,694,020
Interest income recognized on a cash basis 530,510 205,417 209,181

Changes in the allowance for credit losses were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 
2006 2005 2004

Balance - beginning of year $6,400,480 $5,820,150 $5,528,917
Charge-offs (2,016,001) (336,275) (227,430)
Recoveries 90,195 130,605 191,663
Provision charged to operations 1,257,000 786,000 327,000

BALANCE - END OF YEAR $5,731,674 $6,400,480 $5,820,150
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment are summarized as follows:

2006 2005
Land $1,080,548 $1,102,848
Buildings and improvements 9,270,694 9,398,465
Furniture and fixtures 5,165,555 5,077,140

$15,516,797 $15,578,453
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (6,233,017) (5,397,823)

NET $9,283,780 $10,180,630

December 31,

 
 
NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The gross carrying amount, accumulated amortization and net book value of intangible assets were as follows:

2006 2005
Gross carrying amount $3,297,784 $3,297,784
Less:  Accumulated amortization (2,124,065) (1,914,774)

NET BOOK VALUE $1,173,719 $1,383,010

For the next five years intangible assets will be amortized $192,391 annually.

NOTE 7 - INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS
Interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following:

2006 2005
NOW accounts $16,115,166 $16,982,984
Savings accounts 17,722,281 19,792,315
Money market accounts 82,722,399 67,059,538
Time deposit accounts 135,762,870 154,873,431

TOTAL $252,322,716 $258,708,268

The following table shows the maturity distribution of time deposit accounts:

(In thousands) 2006 2005
Within one year $92,192 $104,951
One to two years 24,436 26,338
Two to three years 9,020 7,213
Three to four years 7,830 9,937
Over four years 2,285 6,434

TOTAL $135,763 $154,873

Time deposit accounts issued in amounts of $100,000 or more totaled $36,942,133 and $44,807,386 at December 31, 
2006 and 2005, respectively.

December 31, 

December 31, 

December 31,
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NOTE 8 – SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
Short-term borrowings included notes payable of $28,579,445 and $28,230,373 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively.  Notes payable are secured by Denmark State Bank and Denmark Ag Credit Corporation stock and 
agricultural loans with a carrying value of $30,518,225 and $31,585,689 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  
The pledged notes also secure long-term debt.  Notes payable have fixed and variable interest rates ranging from 5.68% to 
7.37% at December 31, 2006.  As of December 31, 2006, DBI had $40,128,555 of unused lines of credit with banks to be 
drawn upon as needed. 
 
NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005

Federal Home Loan Bank: Rates Amount Rates Amount
Fixed rate advances 3.59%-5.42% $22,500,000 3.59% - 4.52% $20,000,000
Callable fixed rate advances 4.68% 5,000,000 4.80% - 5.05% 14,000,000

Agribank, FCB:
Fixed rate advances 4.66% 250,000 2.94% - 4.57% 955,000

Other:
Fixed rate advance 8% 52,069 8% 60,216

TOTAL $27,802,069 $35,015,216

The following is a summary of scheduled maturities of borrowed funds as of December 31, 2006:

Weighted 
Average Rate Amount

3.73% 10,008,823
5.43% 2,509,555
3.80% 7,010,348
4.54% 3,261,207
8.00% 12,136

Thereafter 4.68% 5,000,000

TOTAL $27,802,069

2011

2007
2008
2009
2010

 
 
The notes payable to Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago are secured by residential mortgages with a carrying amount 
of $76,729,390 and $82,769,095 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  AgriBank, FCB notes payable are 
secured by agricultural loans with a carrying value of $30,518,225 and $31,585,689 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively.  The pledged notes also secure short-term borrowings.   
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NOTE 10 -  INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes in the consolidated statement of income is as follows:

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Current: Federal $346 $745 $773

State (19) 106 301
$327 $851 $1,074

Deferred: Federal ($334) ($266) $153
State 16 (5) (37)

($318) ($271) $116
TOTAL PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES $9 $580 $1,190

income tax rate for the reasons noted in the table below:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %
Tax at statutory federal income tax rate $685 34% $1,076 34% $1,716 34%
Increase (decrease) in tax resulting from:

Tax-exempt income (608) (30) (546) (17) (651) (13)
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit 2 0 67 2 174 4
Bank owned life insurance (72) (3) (72) (2) (75) (2)
Other, net 2 0 55 1 26 1

APPLICABLE INCOME TAXES $9 1% $580 18% $1,190 24%

deferred tax liabilities:

2006 2005
(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for credit losses $1,907 $2,286
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities 19 52
State tax net operating loss carryforward 258 231
Interest receivable on nonaccrual loans 164 104
Alternative Minimum Tax 468 90
Other 77 59

Gross deferred tax assets $2,893 $2,822
Valuation allowance (258) (231)
Total deferred tax assets $2,635 $2,591

Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated depreciation on fixed assets $299 $274
State income taxes 116 121
Stock dividends received 395 662
Other 15 10

Total deferred tax liabilities $825 $1,067
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET $1,810 $1,524

Applicable income taxes for financial reporting purposes differ from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal

Other assets in the accompanying statements of financial condition include the following amounts of deferred tax assets and

DBI has state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3,342,000.  Portions of DBI’s net operating losses have 
been expiring since 2000.  DBI has an AMT credit carryforward of approximately $468,000. 
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN 
DBI has a 401(k) profit sharing and retirement savings plan.  The plan essentially covers all employees who have been 
employed over one-half year, and are at least twenty and one-half years old.  Provisions of the 401(k) profit sharing plan 
provide for the following: 
 

§ DBI will contribute 50% of each employee contribution up to a maximum DBI contribution of 2%.  
Employee contributions above 4% do not receive any matching contribution. 
§ DBI may elect to make contributions out of profits.  These profit sharing contributions are allocated to the 

eligible participants based on their salary as a percentage of total participating salaries.  The contribution 
percentage was 8% for 2006, 2005 and 2004. 

 
DBI provides no post retirement benefits to employees except for the 401(k) profit sharing and retirement savings plan 
discussed above which are currently funded.  DBI expensed contributions of $412,767, $417,756 and $418,054 for the 
years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CREDIT RISK 
DBI and its subsidiaries are parties to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to 
meet the financing needs of their customers.  These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and 
standby letters of credit.  Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess 
of the amount recognized in the statement of financial position.  The contract or notional amounts of those instruments 
reflect the extent of involvement DBI and its subsidiaries have in particular classes of financial instruments. 
 

Contract or
Notional Amount Secured

(In thousands) December 31, 2006 Portion
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

Commitments to extend credit $27,416 $18,637
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written 1,716 1,716  

 
 
The exposure of DBI and its subsidiaries to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial 
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual or notional 
amount of these instruments.  DBI and its subsidiaries use the same credit policies in making commitments and 
conditional obligations as for on-balance sheet instruments.  DBI and its subsidiaries require collateral or other security to 
support financial instruments with credit risk. 
 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
require payment of a fee.  Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total 
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.  DBI and its subsidiaries evaluate each 
customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.  Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, 
inventory, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties.  As of December 31, 2006, 
variable rate commitments totaled $8,573,000. 
 
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by DSB to guarantee the performance of a customer to a 
third party.   Those guarantees are primarily issued to support commercial business transactions.  When a customer fails 
to perform according to the terms of the agreement, DSB honors drafts drawn by the third party in amounts up to the 
contract amount.  A majority of the letters of credit expire within one year.  The credit risk involved in issuing letters of 
credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers.  Collateral held varies but may include 
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties and 
residential  properties.  All letters of credit are fully collateralized. 
 
DBI maintains deposits at other financial institutions.  These deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to $100,000.  The balance in excess of the insured amount as of December 31, 2006, was approximately 
$981,000.  Federal funds sold to correspondent banks are not insured. 
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NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
At December 31, 2006 and 2005 certain DBI subsidiary executive officers, directors and companies in which they have a 
ten percent or more beneficial interest, were indebted to DBI and its subsidiaries in the amounts shown below.  All such 
loans were made in the ordinary course of business and at rates and terms similar to those granted other borrowers.   
 

12/31/2005 12/31/2006
Beginning New Ending

(In thousands) Balance Loans Payments Balance
Aggregate related party loans $4,398 $776 ($565) $4,609

 
 
Deposit balances with DBI’s executive officers, directors and affiliated companies in which they are principal owners 
were $1,958,242 and $2,066,790 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 

NOTE 14 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY INFORMATION 
Following, in a condensed form, are parent company only statements of financial condition, statements of income and 
cash flows of Denmark Bancshares, Inc.  The financial information contained in this footnote is to be read in association 
with the preceding accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
 

DENMARK BANCSHARES, INC.
Statements of Financial Condition

(In thousands) 2006 2005
Assets

Cash in banks $1,093 $1,451
Investment

Banking subsidiary 35,574 34,782
Nonbanking subsidiaries 8,055 7,448

Fixed assets (net of depreciation 
of $3,091 and $2,684, respectively) 8,268 8,825

Other assets 178 141

TOTAL ASSETS $53,168 $52,647
Liabilities

Accrued expenses $148 $132
Dividends payable 851 852
Other liabilities 127 110
Note payable - unrelated bank 2,000 1,000

Total Liabilities $3,126 $2,094
Stockholders' Equity

Common stock $16,107 $16,975
Paid-in capital 470 470
Retained earnings 33,500 33,192
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (35) (84)

Total Stockholders' Equity $50,042 $50,553
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $53,168 $52,647

December 31,
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DENMARK BANCSHARES, INC.
Statements of Income

For the Years Ended December 31, 
(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Income

Interest income from loans $0 $0 $2
Other interest income 18 22 21
Dividend income from banking subsidiary 998 2,000 1,500
Dividend income from nonbanking subsidiary 0 1,001 0
Rental income from banking subsidiary 632 560 416
Rental income from nonbanking subsidiary 9 9 9

Total Income $1,657 $3,592 $1,948
Expenses

Management fees to banking subsidiary $198 $186 $174
Interest expense 78 1 0
Provision for credit losses 0 0 (3)
Depreciation 433 289 249
Other operating expenses 437 563 359

Total Expenses $1,146 $1,039 $779

Income before income taxes and 
undistributed income of  subsidiaries $511 $2,553 $1,169

Income tax benefit (155) (139) (108)
Income before Undistributed 

Income of Subsidiaries $666 $2,692 $1,277
Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiaries

Banking subsidiary 742 251 1,892
Nonbank subsidiaries 607 (357) 689

NET INCOME $2,015 $2,586 $3,858
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DENMARK BANCSHARES, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net Income $2,015 $2,586 $3,858
Adjustments to reconcile net income to 

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 433 289 249
Equity (earnings) of banking subsidiary (1,740) (2,251) (3,392)
Equity (earnings) of nonbanking subsidiaries (607) (644) (689)
Dividend from banking subsidiary 998 2,000 1,500
Dividend from nonbanking subsidiary 0 1,001 0
Loss on sale of assets 1 0 0
Decrease (increase) in other assets (38) 145 (18)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 33 37 230

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $1,095 $3,163 $1,738
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Capital expenditures $0 ($1,850) ($3,051)
Proceeds from sale of assets 123 0 0

Net decrease in real estate loans 0 0 68
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $123 ($1,850) ($2,983)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Debt proceeds $1,000 $1,000 $0
Treasury stock proceeds 215 76 90
Treasury stock purchases (1,084) (780) (517)
Dividends paid (1,707) (1,658) (1,547)

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities ($1,576) ($1,362) ($1,974)

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash ($358) ($49) ($3,219)
Cash, beginning 1,451 1,500 4,719

CASH, ENDING $1,093 $1,451 $1,500
Supplemental Disclosure:

Income taxes received ($107) ($59) ($297)

 
 

NOTE 15 - EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN 
In December of 1998, DBI adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan.  All DBI employees, except executive officers and 
members of the board of directors, are afforded the right to purchase a maximum number of shares set from time to time 
by the board of directors.  Rights granted must be exercised during a one-month purchase period prescribed by the board.  
Rights are exercised at fair market value.  In 2006, 500 rights were granted and of those 95 shares were purchased.  In 
2005, 279 rights were granted and of those 87 shares were purchased.    
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NOTE 16 - DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for 
which it is practicable to estimate that value: 
 

Cash and Federal Funds Sold - For cash and federal funds sold, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair 
value. 

 
Investment Securities - For securities held for investment purposes and marketable equity securities held for 
investment purposes, fair values are based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes.  For other securities held as 
investments, fair value equals quoted market price, if available.  If a quoted market price is not available, fair value 
is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. 

 
Loans Receivable - The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates 
at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining 
maturities. 
 
Loans Held For Sale - Fair value is based on commitments from investors or prevailing market prices. 
 
Other Investments - For other investments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 
 
Bank Owned Life Insurance – The carrying amount of bank owned life insurance approximates fair value. 
 
Deposit Liabilities - The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts and certain money market deposits is the 
amount payable on demand at the reporting date.  The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is 
estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. 

 
Borrowings - Rates currently available to DSB for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to 
estimate fair value of existing debt.  

           
Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of Credit and Financial Guarantees Written - The fair value of 
commitments is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the 
remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the counterparties.  For fixed-rate loan 
commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed 
rates.  The fair value of guarantees and letters of credit is not material. 
 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

(In thousands)
Financial Assets

Cash and federal funds sold $21,002 $21,002 $15,635 $15,635
Investment securities 51,085 52,781 49,570 51,426
Loans 306,031 304,545 325,071 322,688
Loans held for sale 904 904 1,440 1,440
Less:  Allowance for credit losses (5,732)             - (6,400)             -
Bank owned life insurance 5,776 5,776 5,563 5,563
Other investments, at cost 4,945 4,945 7,743 7,743

TOTAL $384,011 $389,953 $398,622 $404,495
Financial Liabilities

Deposits $293,662 $293,866 $298,254 $297,794
Borrowings 56,381 56,468 63,246 62,074

TOTAL $350,043 $350,334 $361,500 $359,868

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005
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NOTE 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS   
DBI and DSB are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking 
agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on DBI's financial statements.  
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, DBI must meet specific 
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of DBI's assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as 
calculated under regulatory accounting practices.   DBI's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative 
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. 
 
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require DBI and DSB to maintain minimum 
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total Capital and Tier 1 Capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 Capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).  Management believes, as of 
December 31, 2006, that DBI and DSB meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject. 
 
As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized DSB 
as well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  To be categorized as well-capitalized 
DSB must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. 
 
The Company's actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table below:

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective
Amount Adequacy Purposes: Action Provision:

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2006:

Denmark Bancshares, Inc.
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $52,898,009 16.6% $25,426,607 >8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $48,903,388 15.4% $12,713,304 >4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)* $48,903,388 12.5% $15,661,669 >4.0% N/A N/A

Denmark State Bank
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $37,989,394 13.8% $21,986,858 >8.0% $27,483,573 >10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $34,534,580 12.6% $10,993,429 >4.0% $16,490,144 > 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)* $34,534,580 9.9% $13,959,812 >4.0% $17,449,765 > 5.0%

As of December 31, 2005:
Denmark Bancshares, Inc.

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $53,420,978 16.1% $26,491,540 >8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $49,253,759 14.9% $13,245,770 >4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)* $49,253,759 12.2% $16,197,210 >4.0% N/A N/A

Denmark State Bank
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $37,213,195 13.0% $22,959,113 >8.0% $28,698,891 >10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $33,599,567 11.7% $11,479,557 >4.0% $17,219,335 > 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)* $33,599,567 9.3% $14,463,580 >4.0% $18,079,475 > 5.0%

*Average assets are based on the most recent quarter's adjusted average total assets.  
   
Wisconsin law provides that state chartered banks may declare and pay dividends out of undivided profits but only after 
provision has been made for all expenses, losses, required reserves, taxes and interest accrued or due from the bank.  
Payment of dividends in some circumstances may require the written consent of the Division. 
 

NOTE 18 – SUBSEQUENT 
On January 2, 2007, the McDonald-Zeamer Insurance Agency, Inc. entered into an agreement to sell the insurance book 
of business and some office equipment to Associates Insurance Agency, Ltd. for $500,000.  The transaction closed on 
January 5, 2007.  As part of the agreement, McDonald-Zeamer Insurance, Inc. shall not engage in the insurance business 
for a period of three years. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Denmark Bancshares, Inc. and 
its subsidiaries (“DBI”), is intended as a review of significant factors affecting DBI's consolidated results of operations 
during the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and DBI's consolidated financial condition at the end of each year 
of the two-year period ended December 31, 2006.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the 
“CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” including the accompanying notes, and the “SELECTED 
FINANCIAL DATA” presented elsewhere in this report.  DBI's subsidiaries are the Denmark State Bank (“DSB”), 
Denmark Agricultural Credit Corporation (“DACC”) and the McDonald-Zeamer Insurance Agency, Inc. (“McDonald”). 
 
This report may contain certain forward-looking statements, including without limitation, statements regarding results of 
operations, the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses, the amounts of charge-offs and recoveries, capital to 
assets ratios, capacity for paying dividends and liquidity.  These forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain and 
actual results may differ from Management’s expectations. The following factors which, among others, could impact 
current and future performance include but are not limited to: (i) adverse changes in asset quality and resulting credit risk-
related losses and expenses; (ii) adverse changes in the local economy; (iii) fluctuations in market rates and prices which 
can negatively affect net interest margin, asset valuations and expense expectations; and (iv) changes in regulatory 
requirements of federal and state agencies applicable to banks and bank holding companies, which could have materially 
adverse effects on DBI's future operating results. When relying on forward-looking statements to make decisions with 
respect to DBI, investors and others are cautioned to consider these and other risks and uncertainties.  All forward-looking 
statements contained in this report are based upon information presently available and DBI assumes no obligation to 
update any forward-looking statements.  
 
Critical Accounting Policies 
 
The accounting and reporting policies of DBI are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America and conform to general practices in the banking industry. The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with these principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions are based on information available at the date of 
the financial statements. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions, and 
judgments and as such have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally 
reported. 
 
Management believes that DBI's critical accounting policies are those relating to the allowance for loan and lease losses 
and intangible assets. 
 
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses 
 
The allowance for loan and lease losses ("ALLL") is an estimate of the losses that may be sustained in the loan and lease 
portfolio. The allowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (1) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
("SFAS") No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies", which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of 
occurring and estimable, and (2) SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan", which requires that 
losses be accrued when it is probable that DBI will not collect all principal and interest payments according to the loan's 
or lease's contractual terms. Guidelines for determining allowances for loan losses are also provided in the SEC Staff 
Accounting Bulletin No. 102 - "Selected Loan Loss Allowance Methodology and Documentation Issues" and the Federal 
Financial Institutions Examination Council's interagency guidance, "Policy Statement on Allowance for Loan and Lease 
Losses Methodologies and Documentation for Banks and Savings Institutions" (the "FFIEC Policy Statement"). 
 
DSB's and DACC's boards of directors have approved policies to provide management with a systematic methodology to 
determine an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses. This methodology includes a systematic loan grading system 
that requires quarterly reviews, identification of loans to be evaluated on an individual basis for impairment, results of 
independent reviews of asset quality and the adequacy of the allowance by regulatory agencies as an integral part of their 
examination process, consideration of current trends and volume of total nonperforming, past-due, nonaccrual and 
potential problem loans, and consideration of national and local economic trends and industry conditions. 
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In applying the methodology, nonaccrual loans, restructured loans and potential problem loans (other than loans secured 
by 1-to-4 family residential properties, loans secured by consumer personal property and unsecured loans), above a 
certain size, are reviewed to determine if they are impaired. Impaired loans are individually analyzed and an allowance 
amount is calculated for each one of these loans, based on the estimated fair value of collateral, in conjunction with FAS 
114. Loans that are not impaired are segmented into groups by type of loan. The following loan types are utilized so that 
each segment of loans will have similar risk factors: 1) residential real estate, 2) agricultural real estate, 3) commercial 
real estate, 4) agricultural, 5) commercial, 6) consumer installment, and 7) other. In addition, based on internal reviews 
and external reviews performed by regulatory authorities, DSB and DACC further segregate loans that are not impaired 
by loan risk classification within each type of loan based on an assessment of risk for a particular loan. The applicable 
risk classifications are "special mention" and "substandard". A "substandard" loan is a loan that is inadequately protected 
by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of any collateral. Loans classified "substandard" have 
well-defined weaknesses that jeopardize liquidation and are characterized by the distinct possibility that some loss will be 
sustained if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans classified "special mention" are one step above substandard; these 
loans contain some weakness which if not corrected or improved upon could lead to further deterioration and a lower 
rating. Risk factor percentages are applied to the identified segments of each of the nonclassified and classified portions 
of the portfolios to calculate an allowance in conjunction with FAS 5. These risk factor percentages are based on 
historical loan loss experience adjusted for current economic conditions and trends and internal loan quality trends. 
 
The foregoing calculations in accordance with FAS 114 and FAS 5 are used to confirm the adequacy and appropriateness 
of the ALLL as developed through provisions for credit losses charged to expense, recognizing that the ALLL represents 
an aggregation of judgments and estimates by management. Such calculations also influence the amount of future 
provisions for credit losses charged to expense, pending reapplication of the described systematic methodology. 
 
Management evaluates the appropriateness of the ALLL on a quarterly basis and submits to the board of directors of DSB 
each quarter a recommendation of the amount of a monthly provision for loan losses. If the mix and amount of future 
charge-offs differ significantly from those assumptions used by management in making its determination, the ALLL and 
the provision for loan losses on the income statement could be materially affected. Management believes that the ALLL is 
adequate as of December 31, 2006. 
 
Intangible Assets 
 
DBI has a core deposit intangible asset that was originated in connection with DSB's expansion through an acquisition of 
an established branch operation in 1997. The acquisition did not meet the definition of a business combination in 
accordance with Statement No. 141. As such, DBI continues to amortize the intangible asset related to the acquisition 
over a period of fifteen years.  Annually DBI reviews the intangible assets for impairment and records an impairment 
charge, if any, to earnings. 
 
Glossary of Loan Terms 
 
Impaired Loan - A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that not all amounts 
due will be collected according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  Impaired loans are measured at the 
estimated fair value of the collateral.  If the estimated fair value of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment 
in the loan, an impairment is recognized by creating a valuation allowance.     
 
Nonaccrual Loan - DSB's policy is to place in nonaccrual status all loans which are contractually past due 90 days or 
more as to any payment of principal or interest and all other loans as to which reasonable doubt exists as to the full, 
timely collection of interest or principal based on management's view of the financial condition of the borrower.  When a 
loan is placed on nonaccrual, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest 
income.  Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received and where the future collection 
of principal is probable.  Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are brought fully current with respect 
to interest and principal and when, in the judgment of the management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to 
both principal and interest.  
 
Non-Performing Assets - Non-performing assets include nonaccrual loans as defined above and real and personal 
properties acquired in satisfaction of debts previously owed.  
 
Past Due Accruing Loans - A loan on which all or part of a scheduled payment is delinquent by more than 30 days but 
less than 90 days past due, except loans that are considered nonaccrual.  
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Potential Problem Loans - Potential problem loans are accruing loans in which there exists doubt as to the ability of the 
borrower to comply with present loan repayment terms.  Management's decision to place loans in this category does not 
necessarily mean that DBI expects losses to occur on these loans, but that management recognizes that a higher degree of 
risk is associated with these accruing loans and they deserve closer scrutiny.   
 
Restructured Loans - Restructured loans involve the granting of some concession to the borrower involving the 
modification of terms of the loan, such as changes in the payment schedule, the amortization term, the interest rate, or a 
combination of these. 
 
Risk Rating – Risk rating, which is also sometimes referred to as loan grading, is the credit quality grade assigned to 
each loan.  Loans are assigned a risk rating upon origination.  Lenders and credit review analysts conduct periodic 
reviews and evaluations and make adjustments to the assigned grades when appropriate.  The range of categories from the 
best quality to worst is as follows: highest quality, solid quality, some weakness, inherent industry weakness, special 
mention, substandard, doubtful and loss.  Impaired loans are generally assigned a substandard risk grade. 

 
Special Mention Loans - Loans classified "special mention" are one step above substandard loans as described below.  
These loans contain some weakness, which if not corrected or improved upon could lead to further deterioration and a 
lower rating.   
 
Substandard - A "substandard" loan is a loan that is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying 
capacity of the borrower or of any collateral. Loans classified "substandard" have well-defined weaknesses that 
jeopardize liquidation and are characterized by the distinct possibility that some loss will be sustained if the deficiencies 
are not corrected.  
 
 

OVERVIEW 
DBI recorded unsatisfactory earnings for the second consecutive year.  Net income for the year ended December 31, 
2006, was $2.0 million, or 22% lower than 2005 earnings.   
 
The primary factors in the decrease in net income were a substantial decline in net interest income and a significant 
increase in the provision for credit losses.  Net interest income after the provision for credit losses was $11.2 million, a 
decrease of $1.3 million or 11% lower than 2005.     
 
DBI’s profitability is largely dependent on the loan portfolio.  Interest income and fees on loans totaling $21.5 million in 
2006 represents 82% of gross revenues.  Average loans outstanding increased by $2 million during 2006, however total 
loans outstanding at December 31, 2006, were $20 million lower than the previous year-end.  DBI experienced significant 
credit quality problems during 2006.  Net charge-offs on loans were $1,925,806 during the year compared to $205,670 
one year earlier.  The provision for loan and lease losses during 2006 was $1,257,000 compared to $786,000 one year 
earlier.  DBI transferred $5 million of loans to acquired properties.  At year-end DBI owned twenty-eight properties 
valued at approximately $4 million.  The lending staff devoted a substantial amount of time to credit collection efforts and 
consequently new loan originations suffered.   
 
Management attributes some of the credit quality issues encountered during 2006 to inadequate supervision of residential 
construction lending including a failure to obtain lien waivers, lack of timely inspections of construction progress before 
funds were disbursed and inadequate initial down payment by the developers.  These credit underwriting deficiencies 
combined with higher interest rates and a softening housing market resulted in numerous delinquencies and subsequent 
foreclosure proceedings.    
 
The Board of Directors of DSB approved a revised Loan Policy in February 2006, and reorganized the Loan Committee.  
The revisions include an expansion of the Loan Committee membership and more frequent meetings of the Loan 
Committee.  Improving the credit quality of the loan portfolio and reducing the level of nonperforming assets remains a 
priority for 2007. 
 
Net interest income was $12,485,425 for 2006 compared to $13,346,261 and $13,690,187 during 2005 and 2004, 
respectively.  A decline in the net interest spread from 3.42% during 2005 to 2.98% during 2006 was the primary reason 
for the reduction in net interest income for 2006. 
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The interest rate environment during the last three years has been a challenging one in DBI’s attempt to maintain net 
interest spread. The Federal Open Market Committee has raised short-term rates seventeen times between June 30, 2004, 
and June 29, 2006.  The prime rate of interest has jumped from 4.0% to 8.25% over this time span.  DBI has less than 3% 
of total loans in variable rate loans tied to an index.  DBI offers a market-indexed money market account to depositors in 
order to compete with money market mutual funds.  During 2006, money market accounts averaged $75 million and the 
cost of funds for money market accounts was 4.03% compared to 2.43% during 2005.  During the last two years the rates 
on long-term mortgages have risen approximately 100 basis points compared to the prime rate increase of 425 basis 
points. DBI has $98.3 million in loans secured by residential real estate at year-end compared to $110.7 million at 
December 31, 2005.  Pricing the renewing one, three and five-year balloon residential loans substantially above prevailing 
long-term rates would likely lead to refinancing and a reduction in DBI’s loan portfolio. 
 
The Board of Directors of DSB revised the Asset Liability Funds Management Policy in February 2006 and restructured 
the Asset Liability Committee in an effort to improve DBI’s net interest income.  The restructuring includes the addition 
of responsibilities and changes in procedures and personnel.  DSB has also contracted with a third party to provide a more 
sophisticated asset/liability modeling system and assistance with interest rate pricing and strategy development. 
 
Total noninterest expense for 2006 was $10,823,178, a decrease of $138,715 or 1% lower than 2005.  During 2006, 
occupancy expenses increased by $144,305 or 11% higher than 2005.  The higher occupancy expenses are primarily the 
result of the new Maribel office building, which was completed in 2005. The capital improvements in recent years have 
contributed to higher overhead costs and consequently a higher efficiency ratio.  DBI measures how efficiently it is 
generating net income by comparing its spending on noninterest overhead expenses to its operating income (the resulting 
computation is called the efficiency ratio).  A lower ratio indicates better efficiency.  The efficiency ratio was 71% for 
2006, compared to 69% and 61% for the years ended 2005 and 2004, respectively.  In order to improve efficiencies, the 
lease on the Wrightstown East office was not renewed as of January 2007.  The branch customers were consolidated with 
the Wrightstown West office.  Management anticipates that it will be able to effectively meet the needs of the 
Wrightstown area from one location.  The other significant items of noninterest expenses are discussed on the following 
pages. 
 
DBI continues to maintain a strong capital position in relation to its peers.  DBI’s leverage ratio (core capital as a percent 
of average assets) at year-end was 12.5% compared to 9.9% for peer bank holding companies.  Core capital as a percent 
of risk-based assets was 15.4% compared to the peer group average of 13.0%.    The peer group data was obtained from 
the Federal Reserve’s Bank Holding Company Performance Report as of September 30, 2006, and consists of 143 bank 
holding companies with total assets less than $500 million. 
 
DBI’s loan portfolio contains almost $226 million or 74% of total loans secured by real estate.  Real estate values have 
risen steadily in most of our market area in the last few years.  A significant decline in real estate values throughout our 
market area could cause some loans to be under collateralized. 
 
DBI has a niche in agricultural lending its market area.  The agricultural loan portfolio (including loans secured by 
farmland) was almost $75 million at year-end and represents 24% of total loans.  The agricultural economy experiences 
cyclical fluctuations.  Dairy farmers experienced a decline in profitability in 2006 as a result of lower milk prices and 
higher expenses primarily as a result of higher oil prices and higher interest rates. Farm balance sheets were boosted by 
rising real estate values offsetting the decline in profitability.  This followed two very good years for Wisconsin dairy 
farmers.  DBI experienced no charge-offs during 2006 on the agricultural portfolio and a low level of past due loans.  Past 
due agricultural loans (including nonaccrual loans) totaled $109,038 at year-end compared to $493,227 as of December 
31, 2005.   
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following table sets forth certain items of income and expense as well as period-to-period percentage
increases (decreases) for DBI on a consolidated basis during the most recent three fiscal years:

2006 2005 2004 2006/05 2005/04
(In thousands)

Interest income $24,683 $22,259 $19,615 11%      14%  

Interest expense 12,198 8,913 5,925 37   50

Net interest income 12,485 13,346 13,690 (6)     (3)  

Provision for credit losses 1,257 786 327 60  140  

Noninterest income 1,619 1,567 1,734 3     (10)    

Noninterest expense 10,823 10,962 10,049 (1)    9 

Net income 2,015 2,586 3,858 (22)  (33)

Percent
Increase (Decrease)

 

Earnings Performance Summary 
DBI recorded net income of $2,014,952 in 2006.  This represents a decrease of $570,922 or 22% compared to 2005 
earnings.  The decrease in net income is primarily attributable to a decrease in net interest income and an increase in the 
provision for credit losses.  Net interest income decreased by $860,836 primarily as a result of a lower net interest rate 
spread. The provision for credit losses increased by $471,000 during 2006 compared to 2005. These items more than 
offset a decrease of $570,547 in the provision for income taxes, lower noninterest expenses which decreased by $138,715 
and higher noninterest income which increased by $51,652. 
 
Net income during 2005 decreased $1,272,046 or 33% compared to 2004 earnings.  The decrease in net income in 2005 
was primarily attributable to increases in noninterest expenses and the provision for credit losses and decreases in net 
interest income and noninterest income.   Noninterest expenses increased by $912,468 primarily as a result of increases in 
salaries and employee benefits which increased by $463,944 and occupancy expenses, which increased by $162,501.  The 
provision for credit losses increased by $459,000 during 2005 compared to 2004.  Net interest income decreased by 
$343,926 primarily as a result of a lower net interest rate spread.  Noninterest income decreased by $166,814 primarily as 
a result of lower gains from the sales of loans, which fell by $122,880 in 2005.   These items more than offset a decrease 
of $610,162 in the provision for income taxes.   
 
On a per share basis, net income was $16.87 in 2006 compared with $21.48 in 2005 and $31.86 in 2004.  Return on 
average assets for DBI was 0.50% in 2006 compared to 0.65% in 2005 and 1.05% in 2004.  Return on average equity in 
2006 was 4.0% compared to 5.1% and 7.8% in 2005 and 2004, respectively.   
 
Income Taxes 
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, DBI recorded combined federal and state income tax provisions 
of $9,394, $579,941 and $1,190,103. These provisions reflect effective income tax rates of 1%, 18% and 24%, in 2006, 
2005 and 2004, respectively, which are less than DBI’s combined statutory tax rate of 39%. The lower effective income 
tax rates are primarily attributable to non-taxable interest income earned on state and local government investment 
securities in relation to pre-tax income.  
 
The Internal Revenue Service completed an audit of DBI’s 2002 and 2003 tax returns during the third quarter of 2005.  
As a result of the audit DBI paid $111,170 in additional income taxes for the years audited.  The additional tax payment 
was reflected in the 2005 provision for income tax expense.  The IRS has been auditing a number of Wisconsin banks 
primarily disputing the calculation of the amount of interest expense that is nondeductible based on holding tax-exempt 
securities in Nevada subsidiaries.  DBI disagrees with the position of the IRS but has paid the tax and reserves the right to 
file a refund claim should a bank be successful on this issue in U.S. Tax Court.   
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DBI's consolidated average statements of financial condition, interest earned and interest paid, and the average interest 
rates earned and paid for each of the last three years are: 

(In thousands) Average Income Average Average Income Average Average Income Average
Daily and Yield or Daily and Yield or Daily and Yield or

Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
ASSETS
Interest-earning assets:
   Loans (1) (2) $314,411 $21,541 6.85% $312,532 $19,421 6.21% $282,000 $16,935 6.01%
Investment securities: (3)
   Taxable securities 10,924 464 4.25% 9,280 286 3.08% 10,038 188 1.87%
   Nontaxable securities (2) 37,972 3,019 7.95% 39,769 3,109 7.82% 38,432 3,069 7.99%
   Federal funds sold 5,835 290 4.97% 2,478 70 2.82% 5,803 81 1.40%
   Other investments 8,671 416 4.80% 7,696 445 5.78% 7,532 399 5.30%
     Total Earning Assets $377,813 $25,730 6.81% $371,755 $23,331 6.28% $343,805 $20,672 6.01%

   Cash and due from
       banks $7,454 $8,246 $9,444
   Allowance for credit
       losses (6,392) (6,075) (5,652)
   Premises and equipment 9,767 9,834 7,341
   Other assets 13,078 11,775 11,612
       TOTAL ASSETS $401,720 $395,535 $366,550

   NOW accounts $16,419 $109 0.66% $17,268 $98 0.57% $18,106 $87 0.48%
   Savings accounts 18,714 94 0.50% 19,966 101 0.51% 20,057 102 0.51%
   Money market accounts 74,742 3,012 4.03% 65,230 1,584 2.43% 66,123 624 0.94%
   Time deposits 148,227 6,118 4.13% 150,428 4,877 3.24% 131,497 3,530 2.68%
   Short-term borrowing 28,164 1,500 5.33% 23,804 795 3.34% 20,547 369 1.80%
   Long-term debt 31,811 1,365 4.29% 34,458 1,458 4.23% 28,341 1,213 4.28%
   Total Interest-
   Bearing Liabilities $318,077 $12,198 3.83% $311,154 $8,913 2.86% $284,671 $5,925 2.08%

   Demand deposits $30,873 $31,676 $30,133
   Other liabilities 2,587 2,149 2,070
   Stockholders' equity 50,183 50,556 49,676
      TOTAL LIABILITIES

      EQUITY                        
$000,000

$401,720 $395,535 $366,550
   Net interest income        
       and rate spread $13,532 2.98% $14,418 3.42% $14,747 3.93%

   Net yield on interest
       earning assets 3.58% 3.88% 4.29%

200420052006

Noninterest-earning assets:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

      AND STOCKHOLDERS'

Non-interest-bearing liabilities and stockholders' equity:

Interest-bearing liabilities:

 
 

(1) Nonaccrual loans are included in the average daily balance figure, but interest income associated with these loans is 
recognized under the cash basis method of accounting.  

(2) The yield on tax-exempt loans and securities is computed on a tax-equivalent basis using a tax rate of 34%. 
(3)  Securities are shown at amortized cost.   
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Net Interest Income 
The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in interest earned and interest paid resulting from changes in 
volume and changes in rates.  Changes that are not due solely to volume or rate have been allocated to rate.  
 

Average Average Total Average Average Total
Balance Rate Change Balance Rate Change

Interest income:
    Loans (1) $117 $2,003 $2,120 $1,833 $653 $2,486
    Taxable securities 51 127 178 1 106 107
    Nontaxable securities (1) (140) 50 (90) 106 (66) 40
    Federal funds sold 94 126 220 (46) 35 (11)
    Other investments 56 (86) (30) (30) 68 38
Total interest income $178 $2,220 $2,398 $1,864 $796 $2,660
Interest expense:
    NOW accounts ($5) $17 $12 ($4) $15 $11
    Savings accounts (6) (1) (7) 0 (1) (1)
    Money market accounts 231 1,197 1,428 (8) 968 960
    Certificates and other time deposits (71) 1,312 1,241 508 839 1,347
    Other borrowed funds 66 545 611 303 368 671
Total interest expense $215 $3,070 $3,285 $799 $2,189 $2,988
Net interest income ($37) ($850) ($887) $1,065 ($1,393) ($328)

(1)  Shown on a fully taxable equivalent basis assuming a Federal income tax rate of 34%.

Due to Change In
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005

Increase (Decrease)
Due to Change In

Increase (Decrease)

  
 
Net interest income is the largest component of DBI's operating income.  Net interest income represents the difference 
between interest income on earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the interest expense on deposits and other 
borrowed funds.  Net interest income is affected by fluctuations in interest rates and by changes in the volume of earning 
assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding.  Net interest income in the following discussion has been adjusted to a 
taxable equivalent level (tax-exempt interest has been increased to a level that would yield the same after-tax income had 
that income been subject to tax at a 34% tax rate) and therefore differs from the amount reported in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income.    

  
Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis decreased 6% or $886,578 from 2005 to 2006.  The decrease is the 
result of a lower net interest spread, which resulted in a decline in net interest income of $849,410. Net interest spread is 
the difference between the average yield earned on assets and the average rate incurred on liabilities.  The decrease is 
mostly attributable to a higher overall cost of funds, which jumped ninety-seven basis points from 2.86% in 2005 to 
3.83% in 2006.  The average cost of funds for money market accounts increased 160 basis points from 2.43% during 
2005 to 4.03% during 2006.  During 2006, the average cost of funds for CDs and other borrowed funds increased by 
eighty-nine and ninety-one basis points, respectively, compared to 2005.  The average yield on earning assets increased 
by fifty-three basis points from 6.28% in 2005 to 6.81% during 2006.  The tax-equivalent net interest spread was 2.98% 
during 2006, compared to 3.42% and 3.93% during 2005 and 2004, respectively.        
 
Taxable equivalent net interest income decreased 2% or $327,983 from 2004 to 2005.  The decrease was the result of a 
lower net interest spread, which resulted in a decline in net interest income of $1,393,332.  The decrease is mostly 
attributable to a higher overall cost of funds, which jumped seventy-eight basis points from 2.08% in 2004 to 2.86% in 
2005.  The average cost of funds for money market accounts increased 149 basis points from 0.94% during 2004 to 
2.43% during 2005.  During 2005, the average cost of funds for CDs and other borrowed funds increased by fifty-six and 
sixty-three basis points, respectively, compared to 2004.  The average yield on earning assets increased by twenty-seven 
basis points from 6.01% in 2004 to 6.28% during 2005.   
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The decrease in net interest income during 2005 as a result of the lower net interest rate spread more than offset the 
increase in net interest income from the change in the volume of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.  Tax 
equivalent interest income increased $1,864,031 as a result of the increase in average earning assets during 2005 
compared to 2004.  Average loans outstanding increased by $30.5 million or 11% during 2005 compared to 2004 and 
accounted for most of the increase in interest income.  Interest expense increased $798,682 as a result of increased 
volume of interest-bearing liabilities.  On average, CDs increased $18.9 million during 2005 compared to 2004 and other 
borrowed funds increased by $9.4 million.       
 
Noninterest Income 

The following table sets forth certain items of noninterest income:

(In thousands)
Noninterest income: 2006 2005 2004 2006/05 2005/04
     Service fees and commissions $1,037 $940 $945 10%         (1%)  
     Investment security losses (59) 0 0 NA       0 
     Loan sale gains 85 134 257 (37)     (48)
     Bank owned life insurance 213 211 222 1    (5)
     Other 343 282 310 22      (9)
          Total noninterest income $1,619 $1,567 $1,734 3%     (10%) 

Percent
Increase (Decrease)

 
 

Noninterest income in 2006 totaled $1,619,099, an increase of $51,652 or 3%.  The increase is primarily the result of 
higher service fees and commissions which increased by $96,163.  Commissions from the sales of mutual funds, annuities 
and common stocks increased by $92,456.  Other noninterest income increased by $64,515 as a result of an increase in 
rental income from acquired properties totaling $67,941.  These increases more than offset the $59,486 loss on securities 
sales and the decrease on gains from the sales of loans, which fell by $49,540.  During the fourth quarter of 2006, DSB 
sold $2.3 million of mortgage-backed investment securities yielding 2.7% resulting in a loss of $59,486.  The proceeds 
were reinvested in securities yielding 5.5%.  DSB sold $7.4 million of residential real estate loans to the secondary 
mortgage market during 2006 compared to $11.3 million during the previous year.   
  
Total noninterest income was $1,567,447, a decrease of $166,814 or 10% in 2005.  The decrease was primarily the result 
of lower gains from the sales of loans, which decreased by $122,880.  DSB sold $11.3 million of residential real estate 
loans to the secondary mortgage market during 2005 compared to $21.6 million during the previous year.  Other 
noninterest income decreased during 2005 by $27,992.    Appraisal fees decreased by $37,100 during 2005 compared to 
the previous year.  The decline in appraisal fees was related to a decrease in mortgage refinancing activity.  Service fees 
and commissions decreased by $4,942.  The decrease was attributable to lower commissions from the sales of investment 
products, which fell $16,072. This decrease was partially offset by higher insurance commissions which rose by $4,186 
and higher fees on bank products which rose $6,944. 
 
Noninterest Expense 

Noninterest Expense: 2006 2005 2004 2006/05 2005/04
    Salaries and employee benefits $6,397 $6,615 $6,152     (3%)       8% 
    Occupancy expenses 1,510 1,366 1,203 11  14
    Data processing expenses 1,025 732 645 40  14
    Marketing expenses 148 257 262 (42)    (2)
    Amortization of intangibles 209 213 214 (2)   (1)
    Printing and supplies expenses 180 213 221 (15)   (4)
    Directors and committee fees 156 235 228 (33)   3
    Professional fees 360 224 241 61    (7) 
    Loss on sale of other real estate 23 226 88 (90) 157  
    Other operating expenses 815 881 795  (7) 11
         Total noninterest expense $10,823 $10,962 $10,049     (1%)      9%

The following table sets forth certain items of noninterest expense:

Percent
Increase (Decrease)(In thousands)
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Total noninterest expense was $10,823,178, a decrease of $138,715 or 1% in 2006.  Data processing expenses increased 
$292,498 or 40% in 2006.  DSB agreed to a new contract for its core data processing systems.  The contract required a 
conversion to the Fiserv ITI system in January 2007.  DSB accrued $170,000 in expenses payable to its former provider 
for the deconversion of customer data.  DSB also incurred other one-time costs related to the conversion.       
 
Occupancy expenses increased by $144,305 in 2006 primarily as a result of higher depreciation expense which rose 
$134,971.  The higher depreciation expenses are primarily attributable to the building, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
of the Maribel office that was occupied during 2005.  Depreciation for the Maribel office was $256,385 during 2006, 
which represents an increase of $188,487 compared to 2005.   
 
Professional fees increased by $136,040 or 61% during 2006.  Professional fees include expenditures for legal, audit, 
compliance, tax and other professional services.  The increase is primarily attributable to legal expenses related to the 
departure of DBI’s former CEO.  DBI also incurred legal expenses for advice concerning DBI’s Stock Repurchase Policy 
and for a review of the Fiserv data processing contract.  Professional fees during 2006 also included $17,732 to a 
consultant for strategic planning.   
  
Salaries and employee benefits expense decreased $218,963 or 3% in 2006.  The decrease is primarily attributable to 
lower group health insurance expenses, which fell by $195,330 or 16% as a result of a change in the plan and an increase 
in employees’ contributions.  Salaries and wages decreased by $23,203 in 2006.  The decrease is attributable to a 
substantial reduction in annual bonuses, which offset regular salary and wage increases.  The average number of full-time 
equivalent employees was 102 and 100 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.   
 
Other operating expenses decreased $269,692 or 24% in 2006.  Losses on the sales of other real estate properties acquired 
through foreclosure totaled $22,907 during 2006, a decrease of $202,956.   Other operating expenses include expenses 
incurred on acquired properties totaling $185,727 in 2006, an increase of $121,332 compared to 2005 expenses totaling 
$64,395.  Travel and entertainment expenses were reduced by $145,688 in 2006.  This decrease was primarily achieved 
by eliminating expenses for the lease, tickets and food and beverage expenses associated with a luxury suite at Lambeau 
Field.  Other operating expenses in 2005 included a loss of $75,453 related to the write-down of the former Maribel bank 
building following the move to the newly constructed building in May of 2005.     
 
Marketing expenses were reduced $108,554 or 42% lower than 2005.  Directors’ fees decreased by $78,385 or 33% 
during 2006.  The decrease is primarily the result of a change in the directors’ compensation policy that eliminates certain 
fees to inside directors for board and committee meetings.   

 
Salaries and employee benefits expense increased $463,944 or 8% in 2005.  The increase was primarily attributable to 
higher salaries and wages, which increased by $264,367 or 6% as a result of both regular salary increases and the addition 
of staff.  The average number of full-time equivalent employees was 96 for the year ended December 31, 2004.  Higher 
group health insurance expenses, which increased by $175,915 or 16%, also contributed to the increase in salaries and 
employee benefits.   
 
Other operating expenses increased $224,570 or 25% in 2005.  Losses on the sales of other real estate properties acquired 
through foreclosure totaled $225,863 during 2005.  This represents an increase of $137,634 compared to 2004.  DSB 
sustained a loss of $183,542 on the disposal of a commercial property that had been acquired in 2003.  The total loss on 
this property, including a write-down of $100,867 expensed during 2004, totaled $284,409.   

 
Occupancy expenses increased by $162,501 in 2005 primarily as a result of higher depreciation expense which rose 
$93,713.  The higher depreciation expenses are primarily attributable to the building, furniture, fixtures and equipment of 
the Wrightstown office that was occupied during 2004.  Depreciation for the Wrightstown office was $161,971 during 
2005, which represents an increase of $81,972 compared to 2004.  Other occupancy expenses also increased primarily as 
a result of the Wrightstown office.  These expenses include utilities expenses, which increased by $32,813 during 2005 
and real estate taxes and personal property taxes, which increased by $32,783.  
 
Data processing expenses increased by $87,531 or 14% in 2005.   The increase was primarily attributable to an increase 
of $70,317 in service fees paid to our major service provider as a result of additional services used and increased 
communication costs.  Our contract with the service provider includes price adjustments for 2004 through 2006.  The 
service provider does DBI’s core system processing as well as provides us with our network communications.   
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FINANCIAL CONDITION 
The following table sets forth certain assets and liabilities of DBI on a consolidated basis as of the end of each of the three 
most recent fiscal years and period-to-period percentage increases (decreases): 

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2006/05 2005/04
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing
  deposits in other banks $11,744 $5,140 $14,119 128%      (64)%
Investment securities 51,085 49,570 49,005 3    1
Loans (includes loans held for sale) 306,935 326,512 300,864 (6)    9
Allowance for credit losses (5,732) (6,400) (5,820) (10)  10
Total assets 402,843 414,521 396,685 (3)   4
Deposits 293,662 298,254 288,758 (2)   3
Other borrowed funds 56,382 63,245 55,491 (11) 14
Stockholders' equity 50,042 50,553 50,383 (1)   1

Increase (Decrease)
Percentage

 
 
 
Total assets at December 31, 2006, were $402.8 million.  This represents a decrease of $11.7 million, or 3% lower than 
year-end 2005.   Total loans decreased $19.6 million or 6% lower than year-end 2005.  During 2006 DSB sold $7.4 
million of fixed rate residential loans to the secondary mortgage market.  Management attributes the decline in the loan 
portfolio to a softening housing market, tighter internal credit underwriting standards, strong local competition for loans 
and a focus on problem credits within the portfolio.  The high level of acquired properties and past due loans required a 
significant amount of time devoted to collections and management of acquired properties. 
 
Total deposits at December 31, 2006, were $293.7 million, a decrease of $4.6 million or 2% lower than at year-end 2005.   
Other borrowed funds were reduced $6.9 million or 11% as a result of the reduction in the loan portfolio.  
 

Loans 
Loans secured by residential mortgages totaling $98.3 million or 32% of total loans represent DBI's largest single 
category of loans.  These loans are substantially all fixed rate loans with original terms of one, three and five years.  At 
the end of the original term the notes are renewed, subject to updated credit and collateral valuation information but 
generally without fees or closing costs to the customer.  Virtually all of these notes amortize principal indebtedness over a 
fifteen to thirty-year period, and are repriceable at fixed rates that generally follow prevailing longer-term rates.  During 
2006, $3.6 million of loans secured by residential properties were transferred to acquired properties and $878,840 of 
charge-offs were recorded on loans secured by residential properties including partially completed construction properties 
and residential lots.  During 2006 and 2005, DBI’s in-house mortgage rates for the one, three and five year balloon 
options were often higher than the fifteen and thirty-year fixed rates available in the long-term mortgage market.  
Management attributes the $12.3 million decline in 2006 to the softening local housing housing market, the transfers to 
acquired properties, the charge-offs and to the interest rate environment. 
 
Commercial real estate loans and other commercial loans declined by $6.7 million in 2006.   DBI transferred $1.4 million 
of commercial real estate loans to acquired properties and recorded charge-offs of $1.0 million on commercial loans 
during 2006.  Management attributes the decline in the commercial portfolio to these factors as well as tighter 
underwriting standards implemented in February 2006.  
 
At December 31, 2006, $74.6 million or 24% of DBI's outstanding loans were deemed “agriculture-related”, constituting 
the highest industrial concentration in the portfolio.  Of these loans, over 90% relate directly to the dairy farming industry.  
Most of these notes are written on a one-year basis, which allows DBI to review credit information and collateral values 
annually to ensure continued loan quality.  Agricultural loans secured by real estate increased by $4.9 million or 14% 
higher than at year-end 2005.  Other agricultural loans totaled $34.8 million at December 31, 2006, a decrease of $1.5 
million compared to the prior year-end.    
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The following table sets forth major types of loans (excluding loans held for sale) by primary collateral at the end of the 
last five years: 
 

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount Amount Amount
Real Estate:
     Residential $98,319 32.1% $110,666 34.0% $108,830 $103,020 $108,714
     Commercial 60,496 19.8% 63,211 19.4% 51,240 40,334 38,770
     Agricultural 39,858 13.0% 34,980 10.8% 31,621 32,040 27,661
     Construction 27,621 9.0% 29,159 9.0% 28,179 16,819 10,384
Subtotal Real Estate Loans $226,294 73.9% $238,016 73.2% $219,870 $192,213 $185,529
Commercial $35,826 11.7% $39,766 12.2% $33,931 $31,102 $28,719
Agricultural 34,783 11.4% 36,261 11.2% 34,732 30,747 34,952
Consumer and other 9,128 3.0% 11,028 3.4% 11,304 11,613 11,693
    TOTAL $306,031 100.0% $325,071 100.0% $299,837 $265,675 $260,893

December 31,
2006 2005

 
 

DBI does not make unsecured loans other than credit card advances, which aggregated $619,179 or .20% of total loans 
outstanding, personal reserve overdraft protection accounts, which aggregated $395,945 or .13% of total loans 
outstanding and deposit account overdrafts totaling $72,170 at December 31, 2006. 
 
The following table shows nonaccrual loans by primary collateral as of the end of each of the last five years: 
 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Secured By Real Estate:
     Residential $5,022,828 $4,131,372 $3,119,151 $3,146,994 $2,228,345
     Agricultural 13,956 252,000 255,000 385,860 379,265
     Commercial 1,868,072 2,010,661 824,654 741,721 2,129,183
           Subtotal Real Estate Loans

$6,904,856 $6,394,033 $4,198,805 $4,274,575 $4,736,793
Secured by commercial assets 1,055,599 975,272 1,488,508 995,433 972,507
Secured by agricultural assets 0 138,503 161,460 828,505 317,470
Secured by other assets 39,851 79,996 51,602 182,959 63,722
          TOTAL $8,000,306 $7,587,804 $5,900,375 $6,281,472 $6,090,492

December 31,

 
Approximately 86% or $6.9 million, of the total nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2006 are secured by real estate.  
Management considers these loans either adequately secured or has allocated an appropriate amount in the allowance for 
loan losses to cover a collateral shortfall. The nonaccrual residential loans at December 31, 2006, include $1,482,640 of 
1-4 family construction loans to builders or developers that became nonaccrual during 2006.  Business assets secure 
approximately 13% or $1.1 million, of the total nonaccrual loans at year-end.  These loans are marginally secured and 
management expects some charge-offs to occur in 2006.  DBI has initiated legal proceedings against several of the 
borrowers whose loans are nonperforming as of year-end.  
 
DBI has no accruing loans that are past due 90 days or more.  DBI's policy is to place in nonaccrual status all loans which 
are contractually past due 90 days or more as to any payment of principal or interest and all other loans as to which 
reasonable doubt exists as to the full, timely collection of interest or principal based on management's view of the 
financial condition of the borrower.  Previously accrued but uncollected interest on loans placed on nonaccrual status is 
charged against the current earnings, and interest income thereafter is recorded only when received. 
 
Restructured loans at December 31, 2006, were $1,618,071 compared to $1,414,391 and $1,209,137 as of year-end 2005 
and 2004, respectively.  Restructured loans involve the granting of some concession to the borrower involving the 
modification of terms of the loan, such as changes in payment schedule or interest rate.  The restructured loans at year-
end involved the lengthening of the amortization period.  
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Potential problem loans totaled $12,650,814 as of December 31, 2006.  Potential problem loans are accruing loans in 
which there exists doubt as to the ability of the borrower to comply with present loan repayment terms.  Management's 
decision to place loans in this category does not necessarily mean that DBI expects losses to occur on these loans, but that 
management recognizes that a higher degree of risk is associated with these accruing loans and they deserve closer 
scrutiny.  The potential problem loans are not concentrated in a particular industry or type.   
 
The following table sets forth certain data concerning nonaccrual loans, restructured loans and other real estate owned 
(property acquired through foreclosure or in satisfaction of loans): 
 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Nonaccrual Loans (1) $8,000 $7,588 $5,900 $6,281 $6,090
Other Real Estate Owned 3,788 343 1,158 1,148 781
Total Nonperforming Assets $11,788 $7,931 $7,058 $7,429 $6,871

(1) Restructured Loans Included Above $1,618 $1,414 $1,209 $1,141 $1,028 

Nonperforming Loans to Total Loans 2.61% 2.33% 1.97% 2.36% 2.33%
Nonperforming Assets to Total Assets 2.93% 1.91% 1.78% 2.07% 1.98%

Year Ended December 31,

 
 
 
Other real estate owned, which is included in other assets, totaled $3,788,100, $342,845 and $1,157,508 at December 31, 
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  The other real estate acquired in satisfaction of loans at December 31, 2006, consists 
of twenty residential properties totaling $2,559,560, two commercial properties valued at $950,000 and six residential lots 
valued at $278,540.  DBI acquired thirty-nine properties during 2006 and sold fifteen properties incurring a loss of 
$22,907.  During 2006, DBI also incurred $185,727 of expenses associated with other real estate.  These expenses 
consisted primarily of repairs, insurance and real estate taxes. 
 
See Note 13 – Related Party Transactions in the Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning 
aggregate loans to related parties. 
 
The following table sets forth the maturities of various categories of loans (excluding loans held for sale) by primary 
collateral as of December 31, 2006: 

Due from
Due in One One to Due after

(In thousands) Year or Less Five Years Five Years Total
Real Estate:
     Residential $74,087 $23,878 $354 $98,319 
     Commercial 44,028 16,468 0 60,496 
     Agricultural 29,542 9,030 1,286 39,858 
     Construction 19,886 7,735 0 27,621 
Subtotal Real Estate Loans $167,543 $57,111 $1,640 $226,294 
Commercial $26,789 $8,581 $456 $35,826 
Agricultural 23,922 10,647 214 34,783 
Consumer and other 6,213 2,898 17 9,128 
          TOTAL $224,467 $79,237 $2,327 $306,031

 
Loans maturing in more than one year at December 31, 2006, by fixed or variable rate are as follows:

(In thousands) Fixed Rate Variable Rate Total
Commercial and agricultural $44,196 $2,486 $46,682
Other 34,714 168 34,882

TOTAL $78,910 $2,654 $81,564
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Allowance For Credit Losses 
The allowance for credit losses is established through a provision for credit losses charged to expense.  Loans are charged 
against the allowance for credit losses when management believes that the collection of the principal is unlikely.   The 
allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb losses inherent in existing loans and 
commitments to extend credit.  The evaluations take into consideration a number of factors, including DSB’s and 
DACC’s loss experience in relation to outstanding loans and the existing level of the allowance for credit losses, changes 
in the nature and volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio quality, loan concentrations, specific problem loans, regular 
examinations and appraisals of loan portfolios conducted by state and federal supervisory agencies, and current and 
anticipated economic conditions.  DBI applies risk factor percentages to certain categories of loans to estimate an 
adequate allowance for loan and lease losses.  Impaired loans are evaluated individually to determine an allowance related 
to those loans.  The allowance for credit losses represents management’s best judgment as to a prudent aggregate 
allowance in connection with the total loan portfolio. 
 
At December 31, 2006, DBI's investment in impaired loans totaled $7,360,713 compared to $3,785,842 one year earlier.  
The impaired loans required a related allowance for credit losses of $367,358 at December 31, 2006.  Impaired loans are 
measured at the estimated fair value of the collateral.     
 
In 2006 DBI's provision for credit losses was $1,257,000 compared to $786,000 and $327,000 during 2005 and 2004, 
respectively.  Net charge-offs were $1,925,806 for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to net charge-offs of 
$205,670 and $35,767 for the years ended 2005 and 2004, respectively.  The ratio of allowance for credit losses to total 
loans was 1.87% at December 31, 2006, compared to 1.96% at December 31, 2005.  The net decrease to the allowance 
was $668,806 or 10% lower than year-end 2005.  In determining the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses at 
December 31, 2006, DBI utilized the same risk factor percentages for loans other than impaired loans that it used at 
December 31, 2005.  
 
DBI's ratio of loans more than 30 days past due (including nonaccrual loans) to total loans was 4.32% at December 31, 
2006, compared to 3.33% and 3.40% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.   

DBI's portfolio is heavily concentrated in DSB's four-county primary service area and would be subject to fluctuations in 
local economic conditions.  DBI does have a concentration of agricultural-related loans amounting to approximately 24% 
of total loans as of December 31, 2006.  The factors that influence the agricultural economy are complex and difficult to 
predict.  Dairy farmers experienced lower milk prices and higher input costs during 2006.  Milk prices during 2006 were 
more than $2 per hundredweight below 2005 prices.  Expenses were higher primarily due to high oil prices.  Despite the 
decline in net income for the dairy sector, aggregate farm balance sheets improved as a result of escalating values for farm 
real estate.  During 2005 and 2004, milk prices averaged $2 to $3 per hundredweight over the preceding five-year 
average.  Management’s underwriting practices takes these cyclical price fluctuations into consideration.  Agricultural 
loans more than 30 days past due (including nonaccrual loans) totaled $109,038 at December 31, 2006.  This represents 
0.04% of total loans outstanding and 1% of DBI's total past due loans.  During 2006 there were $12,352 of net recoveries 
on loans considered agricultural-related compared to $12,369 of net charge-offs during 2005. Management does not 
believe that these risks associated with DBI's loan portfolio have changed materially during the past three years.   
 
Management believes its allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2006, of $5,731,674 (equal to 1.87% of the total 
loans) is adequate to cover credit risks in the loan portfolio. 
 
In 2006 DBI's ratio of charge-off loans to average loans outstanding was 0.64% compared to 0.11% and 0.08% during 
2005 and 2004, respectively.  During 2006, the largest single charge-off was $350,000 on a commercial property.  The 
borrower is experiencing cash flow problems.  Management anticipates that either a sale of the business or foreclosure 
proceedings will occur in 2007.  Other charge-offs on commercial real estate included $128,796 on a car wash and 
$82,327 on a convenience gas station. These properties are included in other real estate at year-end.  Charge-offs totaling 
$618,253 were attributed to four borrowers in residential real estate construction or development.  DBI held fifteen of 
these properties in other real estate at year-end.  These credits were affected by a softening in the local housing market but 
also by poor internal underwriting standards for construction lending.  In addition to these construction loans, DBI wrote-
off $282,036 to a borrower that purchased and renovated residential rental properties.  At December 31, 2006, DBI held 
nine of these rental properties in other real estate.   
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Changes in the allowance for credit losses in each of the five most recent years were as follows: 
 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Balance - beginning of year $6,400,480 $5,820,150 $5,528,917 $5,417,920 $5,524,293
Charge-offs:
    Residential real estate $423,189 $88,503 $61,422 $106,014 $173,175
    Commercial real estate 574,089 33,928 0 59,227 263,324
    Agricultural real estate 0 12,369 0 52,604 25,000
    Construction and land development 455,652 103,167 0 0 0
    Commercial loans 441,774 83,964 61,608 109,500 597,416
    Agricultural  loans 0 0 48,454 53,939 130,000
    Credit cards and related plans 5,261 9,938 11,689 5,331 26,869
    Other consumer 116,036 4,406 44,257 15,077 82,341

$2,016,001 $336,275 $227,430 $401,692 $1,298,125

Recoveries:
    Residential real estate $1,940 $50,154 $39,291 $22,590 $24,824
    Commercial real estate 22,426 47,470 98,705 20,134 151,773
    Agricultural real estate 0 0 0 617 0
    Construction and land development 85 0 0 0 0
    Commercial loans 39,499 18,362 11,850 15,717 38,154
    Agricultural  loans 12,352 0 0 2,070 5,255
    Credit cards and related plans 4,199 5,704 1,081 1,264 1,620
    Other consumer 9,694 8,915 40,736 16,297 26,126

$90,195 $130,605 $191,663 $78,689 $247,752

Net charge-offs $1,925,806 $205,670 $35,767 $323,003 $1,050,373

Provision charged to operations $1,257,000 $786,000 $327,000 $434,000 $944,000

Balance - end of year $5,731,674 $6,400,480 $5,820,150 $5,528,917 $5,417,920

Ratio of net charge-offs during the year to
  average loans outstanding during the year

0.61% 0.07% 0.01% 0.13% 0.39%

Ratio of allowance for credit losses to
  total loans at the end of year 1.87% 1.96% 1.93% 2.07% 2.06%

Year Ended December 31,

 
Deposits 
At December 31, 2006, total deposits were $293,661,670, a decrease of $4,592,002 or 2% compared to December 31, 
2005.  Certificates of deposits declined by $19.1 million compared to the prior year-end.  The decrease is the result of 
sensitivity to local interest rates.  DSB had maturing CDs totaling $29 million and $24 million in July and October, 
respectively.  These maturities were the result of special rate promotions offered in prior years.  Approximately $10 
million of CDs were redeemed from the July maturities and $8 million of the October maturities were redeemed.   
Management considered the following factors when pricing these CD renewals: 1) The decline in the loan portfolio which 
reduced the need for these funds; 2) the desire to spread maturities of CDs more evenly throughout the year to more 
closely match maturing assets; and 3) the overall interest cost of retaining the CDs and the negative impact on net interest 
spread. 
 
Money market accounts increased $15.7 million or 23% higher than year-end 2005.  Depositors shifted funds into money 
market accounts during the rising rate environment.  The average cost of funds was 4.03% during 2006 compared to 
2.43% during 2005. 
 
The large fluctuation in NOW accounts from 2004 to 2005 was a year-end phenomenon.  Average NOW checking 
accounts during 2005 were $17.3 million compared to $18.1 million during the previous year.   
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The following table sets forth the deposits as of the end of each of the three most recent fiscal years and period-to-period 
percentage increases (decreases): 
 

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2006/05 2005/04
Non-interest bearing accounts $41,339 $39,546 $35,012     5%    13%

NOW accounts 16,115 16,983 22,519 (5) (25)

Savings accounts 17,722 19,792 19,907 (10) (1)

Money market accounts 82,723 67,060 64,361 23 4

Certificates of deposit 135,763 154,873 146,959 (12) 5

    Total deposits $293,662 $298,254 $288,758       (2)%     3%

Percent
Increase (Decrease)

 
 
The following table shows, as of December 31, 2006, the maturities of time certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 
or more: 
 

(In thousands)
Three months or less $6,086
Over three months through six months 6,107
Over six months through twelve months 12,598
Over twelve months 12,151
    Total $36,942

Certificates of Deposit

 

 
Investments   
The investment portfolio is managed to provide liquidity and a stable source of income. Taxable securities are purchased 
and designated as available-for-sale to provide liquidity to meet loan growth or deposit withdrawals. Purchases of taxable 
securities are limited to maturities or average lives of five years or less. Non-taxable securities are purchased and 
designated as held-to maturity. Generally these purchases are securities issued by state and local municipalities with 
maturities of 15 to 19 years and some protection against early calls (usually around 10 years). These purchases are made 
to take advantage of upward sloping yield curves that reward long-term investors with higher interest rates and favorable 
interest rate spreads when compared to U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities. No securities are purchased for trading 
purposes.  
 
The following table shows the maturities of investment securities at December 31, 2006, and the weighted average yields 
of such securities: 
 
 

(In thousands) Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield
Due in one year or less $2,198 4.67% $1,038 5.35% $3,944 6.77% $7,180 5.92%
Due from one to five years 380 5.15% 0 0.00% 8,444 8.41% 8,824 8.27%
Due from six to ten years            704 5.50% 0 0.00% 9,869 7.97% 10,573 7.81%
Due after ten years 7,082 5.50% 442 5.23% 17,038 7.75% 24,562 7.06%
    TOTAL $10,364 5.31% $1,480 5.31% $39,295 7.85% $51,139 7.26%

Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized
Agency Securities and Other Securities Securities Total Securities
U.S. Government Mortgage-Backed State and Municipal

 
 
Yields on tax-exempt securities have been computed on a fully taxable equivalent basis, assuming a Federal income tax 
rate of 34%.  Mortgage-backed securities are allocated according to their expected prepayments rather than their 
contractual maturities.  Securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity are combined in the table presented 
above. 
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Other Borrowed Funds and Contractual Obligations 
DBI utilizes a variety of short-term and long-term borrowings as a source of funds for DBI's lending and investment 
activities and for general business purposes.  DBI has in place asset/liability and interest rate risk guidelines that determine 
in part whether borrowings will be short-term or long-term in nature.  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances and 
notes payable to banks consist of secured borrowing under existing lines of credit.  At December 31, 2006, DBI had $96.5 
million of established lines of credit.   
 
DACC's primary sources of funding are short-term and long-term notes payable to banks.  As of December 31, 2006, 
DACC had established lines of credit of $35 million of which $26.6 million were drawn in the form of short-term notes 
payable and $250,000 in long-term notes payable.   
 
At December 31, 2006, total borrowings decreased $6.9 million or 11% lower than the previous year-end.  During 2006, 
DSB reduced borrowings from the FHLB by $6.5 million.  The reduction was primarily related to the decrease in DSB’s 
loan portfolio.  Note 9 - Long-Term Debt of the Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements contains information 
concerning the significant terms of the long-term borrowings. 
 
The following sets forth information concerning other borrowed funds for DBI during each of the last three 
years:

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Short-term borrowings:
    Notes payable to banks $28,580 $28,230 $21,718
       Total short-term borrowings $28,580 $28,230 $21,718
Long-term debt:
    Federal Home Loan Bank advances $27,500 $34,000 $31,000
    Other long-term debt 302 1,015 2,773
       Total long-term debt $27,802 $35,015 $33,773
           Total other borrowed funds $56,382 $63,245 $55,491

Short-term borrowings:
    Average amounts outstanding during the year $28,108 $23,657 $20,476 
    Average interest rates on amounts outstanding during the year 5.34% 3.35% 1.85%
    Weighted average interest rate at year end 5.80% 4.43% 2.43%
    Maximum month-end amounts outstanding $28,875 $27,230 $21,935 

December 31,

 
 
The following table provides information concerning DBI’s known contractual obligations by payment date as of 
December 31, 2006: 

Less Than 1 to 3 3 to 5 Over 5
One Year Years Years Years Total

(In thousands)
Long-term debt obligations (1) (2) $11,203 $10,786 $3,817 $6,059 $31,865
Purchase obligations (3) 349 706 739 774 2,568

$11,552 $11,492 $4,556 $6,833 $34,433

(1) Includes interest expense based on outstanding interest rate.
(2) $5 million of callable FHLB notes are shown at final maturity.  See Note 9 - Long-term Debt in the 
      Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details.
(3) Includes all identified purchase commitments greater than $25,000.  
 
Capital Resources 
Pursuant to regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board, bank holding companies with total assets above $500 
million are required to maintain minimum levels of core capital as a percentage of total assets (leverage ratio) and total 
capital as a percentage of risk-based assets.  Under these regulations, the most highly rated banks must meet a minimum 
leverage ratio of at least 3%, while lower rated banks must maintain a ratio of at least 4%.  The regulations assign risk 
weightings to assets and off-balance sheet items and require a minimum risk-based capital ratio of 8%.  At least half of 
the required 8% must consist of core capital.  Core capital consists principally of shareholders' equity less intangibles, 
while qualifying total capital consists of core capital, certain debt instruments and a portion of the allowance for credit 
losses.   
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The table set forth below describes the ratios of DBI as of the end of the three most recent years, and the applicable 
regulatory minimums.  
 

Regulatory
2006 2005 2004 Minimums

Equity as a % of assets 12.4% 12.2% 12.7% N/A
Core capital as a % of average assets 12.5% 12.2% 12.7% 4.0%
Core capital as a % of risk-based assets 15.4% 14.9% 16.0% 4.0%
Total capital as a % of risk-based assets 16.6% 16.1% 17.3% 8.0%

DBI's core and risk-based capital ratios are well above the regulatory minimums.

Ratios as of December 31, 

 
 
Stockholders' equity at December 31, 2006, decreased 1% to $50,042,376 or $420 per share, compared with $50,552,652 
or $421 per share one year ago.  Cash dividends declared in 2006 were $14.30 per share compared with $14.10 and 
$13.25 in 2005 and 2004, respectively.  The dividend payout ratio (dividends declared as a percentage of net income) was 
85%, 66% and 42% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.   
 
The ability of DBI to pay dividends on the Common Stock is largely dependent upon the ability of DSB to pay dividends 
on the stock held by DBI.  DSB's ability to pay dividends is restricted by both state and federal laws and regulations.   
DSB is subject to policies and regulations issued by the FDIC and the Division of Banking of the Wisconsin Department 
of Financial Institutions (“the Division”), which, in part, establish minimum acceptable capital requirements for banks, 
thereby limiting the ability to pay dividends.  In addition, Wisconsin law provides that state chartered banks may declare 
and pay dividends out of undivided profits but only after provision has been made for all expenses, losses, required 
reserves, taxes and interest accrued or due from the bank.  Payment of dividends in some circumstances may require the 
written consent of the Division.  Note 17 - Regulatory Matters of the Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 
contains information concerning capital ratios of DSB. 
 
Management believes that 2007 earnings of DSB will be sufficient to pay dividends to DBI.  DBI could also receive 
dividends from DACC, which has the earnings and capital strength to provide additional dividends to DBI.  DACC had 
net income of $599,082, $640,664 and $678,020 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  
The core capital as a percent of risk-based assets ratio of DACC as of December 31, 2006, was 22.3%.   
 
DBI, as an accommodation to shareholders, announced a Stock Repurchase Policy on March 30, 1995.  DBI limited 
purchases under the Policy in any six-month period to less than six percent of the common shares outstanding.  The 
Policy had no fixed expiration date, although DBI could terminate the Policy at any time.  DBI was not soliciting or 
encouraging shareholders to sell shares under the Policy.  Stock repurchases totaled $1,083,800, $780,014 and $517,389 
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.   On September 11, 2006, DBI suspended the 
Policy.    
 
Liquidity and Off-balance Sheet Arrangements 
Liquidity refers to the ability of DBI to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet DBI's needs for cash.  Loan requests 
typically present the greatest need for cash but liquidity must also be maintained to accommodate possible outflows in 
deposits.  During 2006, net cash provided by operating activities amounting to $4.2 million, the decrease in loans 
amounting to $12.3 million and the $3.0 million in proceeds from the sale of FHLB Common Stock, as shown in the 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, provided the major sources of funding.  The $6.9 million reduction in other 
borrowings, the $6.6 million increase in federal funds sold, the $4.6 million decrease in deposits and the payment of $1.7 
million in dividends were the major uses of cash during 2006. 
 
DSB maintains liquid assets to meet its liquidity needs.  These include cash and due from banks, marketable investment 
securities designated as available-for-sale and federal funds sold.  DSB also has the ability to borrow approximately $18 
million by means of the purchase of short-term federal funds from its principal correspondent banks.  Management strives 
to maintain enough liquidity to satisfy customer credit needs, meet deposit withdrawal requests and any other expected 
needs for cash.  Excess liquid assets are reallocated to achieve higher yields.  One ratio used to measure the liquidity of 
banking institutions is the net loan to deposit ratio.  The net loan to deposit ratio of DSB was 92%, 95% and 91% at 
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  A high net loan to deposit ratio creates a greater challenge in managing 
adverse fluctuations in deposit balances and consequently this can limit growth.  The net loan to deposit ratio reflects only 
on-balance sheet items.  Off-balance sheet items such as commitments to extend credit and established borrowing lines of 
credit also affect the liquidity position.   
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In order to increase available funding sources DSB is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Chicago.  As 
of December 31, 2006, the amount owed to the FHLB was $27.5 million.  The borrowings are secured by residential 
mortgages.  The amount of eligible borrowing from the FHLB of Chicago is determined by the amount of the residential 
loans held by DSB and by the amount of common stock of FHLB of Chicago purchased by DSB.  The maximum amount 
of collateral that can be pledged to FHLB by DSB is limited by state law to four times capital.  DSB could borrow an 
additional $28.0 million from the FHLB based on its $3.6 million investment in FHLB common stock and eligible 
collateral.  DSB also sells loans to DACC and to the secondary mortgage market to improve its liquidity position.  During 
2006 DSB sold $7.4 million of residential loans to the secondary mortgage market. Other sources of liquidity for DBI 
consist of established lines of credit by DACC and by the parent DBI.  As of December 31, 2006, DACC has unused lines 
of credit of $8.2 million and the parent company has an available line of credit of $4 million.  See Note 12 – 
Commitments and Credit Risk in the Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of DBI's commitments 
to extend credit.  As of December 31, 2006, DBI has no off-balance sheet arrangements other than the commitments to 
extend credit and the standby letters of credit disclosed in Note 12.  Management believes DBI's liquidity position as of 
December 31, 2006, is adequate under current economic conditions.   
 
During 2005, the major sources of funds were loan repayments, net cash provided by operating activities amounting to 
$3.2 million, the increase in deposits amounting to $9.5 million, the net decrease in federal funds sold of $9.0 million and 
the net increase in other borrowings totaling $7.8 million.  The $25.8 million increase in loans, capital expenditures of 
$2.6 million and the payment of $1.7 million in dividends were the major uses of cash during 2005. 
 
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
DBI's principal market risk exposure is interest rate risk. The objectives of DBI's interest rate risk management are to 
minimize the adverse effects of changing interest rates on the earnings of DBI while maintaining adequate liquidity and 
optimizing net interest margin. Interest rate risk is managed by maintaining an acceptable matching of DBI's asset and 
liability maturity and repricing periods, thus controlling and limiting the level of earnings volatility arising from rate 
movements.  DBI does not hold any assets or liabilities for trading purposes.   
 
DBI’s interest rate risk is limited by the short-term nature of the loan portfolio and by the short maturity structure of time 
deposits.  DBI’s investment securities portfolio and long-term debt instruments contain more interest rate risk because of 
their long-term structure.  During periods of an upward-sloping yield curve, management has purchased longer-term 
securities to take advantage of the higher yields.  The held-to-maturity portion of the investment portfolio contains 
municipal securities with maturities as long as nineteen years and consequently is subject to greater market value 
volatility during periods of rising or falling interest rates.  The excess of market value over cost mitigates the current risk 
of the held-to-maturity portfolio and the held-to-maturity portfolio represents only 9.3% of total assets at year-end.   

 
DSB's Asset Liability Committee monitors rate sensitive assets and liabilities and develops appropriate strategies and 
pricing policies.  The committee, which meets monthly, consists of at least three members of senior management.  The 
committee operates under quantifiable financial guidelines measuring interest rate risk as approved by DSB's Board of 
Directors in the Asset Liability Funds Management Policy.  The committee reports to the Board of Directors on a 
quarterly basis.  The committee relies on, among other things, modeling simulations to project the potential effect of 
various rate scenarios on net interest income.   
 
The tables shown below indicate the behavior of DBI's interest margin as rates move up and down using a technique 
known as rate shock.  It simulates ramping rate changes over the next twelve months and the reinvestment of maturing 
cash flows and repricing of both earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.  In order to simulate activity, maturing 
balances are replaced with new balances at the new rate level and repricing balances are adjusted to the new rate shock 
level.  The interest is recalculated for each level along with the new average yield.  Net interest margin is then calculated 
and margin risk profile is developed.  
 
The following table summarizes results of simulations as of the end of the two most recent years: 
 

Projected Net Increase Percent
Change in Interest Rates Interest Income (Decrease) Change
100 basis point rise $13,669,000 $11,000 .01%
No change $13,658,000             -- --
100 basis point decline $13,629,000 ($29,000) (0.2)%

As of December 31, 2006
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Projected Net Increase Percent
Change in Interest Rates Interest Income (Decrease) Change
100 basis point rise $13,769,000 ($17,000) (0.1)%
No change $13,786,000             -- --
100 basis point decline $13,752,000 ($34,000) (0.2)%

As of December 31, 2005

 
 
The computations of the forecasted effects of hypothetical interest rate changes on projected net interest income are based 
on numerous assumptions. The calculations assume a constant yield curve and do not take into account any loan 
prepayments in the event of a decline in interest rates.  The computed forecasted effects should not be relied upon as 
indicative of actual future results.  Further, the computations assume the Asset Liability Committee takes no action in 
response to changes in interest rates. 
 
Management also measures DBI's exposure to interest rate risk by computing the estimated rate shocked economic value 
of equity.  Under this technique the components of the balance sheet are marked-to-market to compute the market value 
of equity.  It is similar to a liquidation value assuming all of the assets are sold at fair market value and all of the liabilities 
are paid off at fair market value.  The market value volatility is a function of term.  The longer the maturity term, the 
greater the volatility (risk).  Balances with very short terms have little market value risk, while long-term balances, such 
as those contained in DSB's investment portfolio, have much greater market value risk.   
 
Market value calculations are complex and require good cash flow information in order to be precise.  The simulation 
model that DBI utilizes approximates the average life of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities; therefore, the 
resulting market value computations are estimates. The average life calculations are then used as a proxy for duration.  
Duration is defined as the percent change in market value (price) of a financial instrument for every 100 basis point 
change in interest rates.  Using this technique, the approximate market values for the major balance sheet categories are 
calculated for various rate changes.  The market value of equity is equal to the market value of assets minus the market 
value of liabilities.   
 
The following table presents DBI's projected change in the market value of equity for various levels of interest rates as of 
the end of the two most recent years: 
 

Estimated Market Increase Percent
Change in Interest Rates Value of Equity (Decrease) Change
100 basis point rise $48,594,000 ($552,000) (1.1)%
No change $49,146,000 -- --
100 basis point decline $49,295,000 $149,000 0.3%

Estimated Market Increase Percent
Change in Interest Rates Value of Equity (Decrease) Change
100 basis point rise $50,387,000 ($456,000) (0.9)%
No change $50,843,000 -- --
100 basis point decline $51,353,000 $510,000 1.0%

As of December 31, 2006

As of December 31, 2005

 
 
This analysis assesses the risk of loss in market rate sensitive instruments in the event of sudden and sustained changes in 
prevailing market interest rates.  As of December 31, 2006, DBI's estimated changes in the market value of equity are 
within a range management considers acceptable.  Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented 
in the computation of market value of equity.  Actual results may differ from those projections presented should market 
conditions vary from assumptions used in these calculations.  
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The following table shows the repricing period for interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the related 
gap based on contractual maturities, at December 31, 2006: 
 

0 to 6 7 to 12 1 to 2 Over 2
Months Months Years Years

Loans $127,497 $110,771 $38,206 $29,557
Investment securities 3,990 3,179 2,344 41,572
Federal funds sold 11,744 0 0 0
Other 4,143 0 0 802

    Total earning assets $147,374 $113,950 $40,550 $71,931

Interest-bearing deposits $163,530 $50,078 $23,224 $15,491
Other borrowed funds 28,632 10,000 2,500 15,250

    Total interest-bearing liabilities $192,162 $60,078 $25,724 $30,741

Rate sensitivity gap ($44,788) $53,872 $14,826 $41,190

Cumulative rate sensitivity gap ($44,788) $9,084 $23,910 $65,100

Cumulative ratio of rate sensitive  
      assets to rate sensitive liabilities 76.69% 103.60% 108.60% 121.09%
Ratio of cumulative gap to    
      average earning assets -11.85% 2.40% 6.33% 17.23%

(In thousands)

 
 
Mortgage backed securities are allocated according to their expected prepayments rather than their contractual maturities. 
For purposes of this analysis, NOW, savings and money market accounts are considered repriceable within six months. 
 
The above gap analysis is used to identify mismatches in the repricing of assets and liabilities within specified periods of 
time or interest sensitivity gaps.  The rate sensitivity or repricing gap is equal to total interest-earning assets less total 
interest-bearing liabilities available for repricing during a given time interval.  A positive gap exists when total interest-
earning repricing assets exceed total interest-bearing repricing liabilities and a negative gap exists when total interest-
bearing repricing liabilities exceed total interest-earning repricing assets.   
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MARKET INFORMATION 
The following table shows market price information and cash dividends paid for DBI's common stock: 
 

Book Value
End of Quarter Dividends

2005 (Unaudited) High Low Paid (2)
1st Quarter $415 $885 $876 $6.75
2nd Quarter 419 879 877 
3rd Quarter 416 886 879 7.00
4th Quarter 421 882 874 

2006
1st Quarter $418 $884 $884 $7.10
2nd Quarter 420 884 878 
3rd Quarter 422 882 877 7.15
4th Quarter 420 875 850 

2007
Through March 1 N/A $886 $850 $7.15

Market
Value (1)

 
 
1) See the following page for additional information about the market value of DBI Common Stock.  
2) The ability of DBI to pay dividends is subject to certain limitations.  See “Capital Resources” in Management's 

Discussion and Analysis.   
 
 
As of March 1, 2007 DBI had 1,508 shareholders of record.  Beneficial owners of DBI’s Common Stock whose shares are 
held in “nominee” or “street” name are not included in the number of shareholders of record. 

 
 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following table sets forth certain unaudited results of operations for the periods indicated:

(In thousands except per share data)

2005 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Interest income $5,287 $5,407 $5,704 $5,861
Interest expense 1,882 2,062 2,345 2,624
Provision for credit losses 126 124 259 277
Net income 719 598 604 665
Net income per share 5.95 4.97 5.03 5.53

2006
Interest income $6,064 $6,121 $6,191 $6,307
Interest expense 2,868 3,066 3,118 3,146
Provision for credit losses 275 261 486 235
Net income 592 401 350 672
Net income per share 4.94 3.35 2.94 5.64

For the Quarter Ended
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STOCK PERFORMANCE 
 

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH 
The following line graph shows a comparison of the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on Denmark 
Bancshares, Inc. Common Stock with the cumulative total returns of the Nasdaq Bank Composite Index and the Nasdaq Composite 
Stock Market Index.  Cumulative total shareholder return includes the change in year-end stock price and assumes reinvestment of 
dividends.  The graph assumes $100 was invested in Denmark Bancshares, Inc. Common Stock and for each index on December 31, 
2001.  The Common Stock of DBI trades sparsely.  There is no established market for the Common Stock of DBI and it is unlikely 
that such a market for the shares will develop in the foreseeable future.  Most of the prices of DBI Common Stock used to determine 
the cumulative total shareholder return were based on repurchases of Common Stock by DBI pursuant to a Stock Repurchase Policy.  
The Stock Repurchase Policy provided that shares offered to DBI could be purchased as an accommodation to shareholders at a 
specified percentage of book value computed as of the most recently publicly filed Form 10-Q or 10-K preceding the purchase.  The 
applicable percentage was 210% of book value from March 28, 2001 through September 11, 2006.   
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Stock/Index                            12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
Denmark Bancshares $100 $111 $136 $144 $147 $144
Nasdaq Bank Composite $100 $102 $132 $151 $147 $166
Nasdaq Stock Composite $100 $69 $104 $113 $116 $128  
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